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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Westwood, Massachusetts

waw_posersandsullivan. com

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Westwood,
Massachusetts as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
Wwith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the desigr
implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibiity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
Budit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
Bbout whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

|An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments. the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the|
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s interal control. Accordingly. we express nol
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
bpinions.

Wnlcns

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaming fund information of the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Acoountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management” s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presemed
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, auhough not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain kmited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
Inquiries of management abcut the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for!
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
‘e oblained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 1o
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of !omling opinions on the ﬁnancial statements thal oolow'voly comprise
indivicual fund m&m&;;ﬁ;;ﬁ;;wiﬂo;ﬂ;&mted for purposes of aodmonal analysns and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsidility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures appled in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion. the combining and individual fund financial
statements are fairly stated. in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and. accordingly. we ¢o not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 1, 2014, on
our consideration of the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts’ internal control over

f nancial reporting and compliance.

'%m Q&U.Mbﬂ\. LLC..

October 1, 2014
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Westwood, we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2014. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented in this report in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter
of transmittal.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the authoritative standard setting body that provides
guidance on how to prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Users of these financial statements (such as investors and rating agencies) rely on the GASB to
establish consistent reporting standards for all governments in the United States. This consistent application is
the only way users (including citizens, the media, legislators and others) can assess the financial condition of one
government compared to others.

Governments must adhere to GASB pronouncements in order to issue their financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. The users of financial statements also rely on the independent auditors’ opinion. If the Town of
Westwood's financial statements have significant departures from GAAP the independent auditors may issue a
qualified opinion or a disclaimer (where no opinion is given). These types of opinions may have an adverse effect
on the Town’s bond rating and our ability to borrow money at favorable interest rates. The Town of Westwood
has enjoyed an unmodified opinion on its financial statements since the year ended June 30, 1984.

Financial Highlights

* The governmental assets of the Town of Westwood exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
year by $100.8 million (net position).

* Atthe close of the current year, the Town of Westwood's general fund reported an ending fund balance of
$15.6 million, an increase of $6 million in comparison with the prior year. Total fund balance represents
20% of total general fund expenditures. Approximately $8.8 million of this total amount is available for
appropriation at the government's discretion, $5.4 million is committed for capital articles approved by
Town Meeting and $1.4 million is assigned for encumbrances carried forward to the subsequent year.

* The Town of Westwood's total governmental debt decreased by $2.3 million during the current year. The
Town issued $1.4 million for various roadway, equipment and drainage projects and paid $3.7 million in
principal payments.

e The Town received $5.3 million in mitigation and permit revenue from the University Station project.
Approximately $900,000 was expended and $4.4 million has been carried over to be expended in future
years.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Westwood's basic financial
statements. The Town of Westwood's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The
government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Town as a
whole. The fund financial statements focus on the individual components of the Town government, reporting the
Towns'’ operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. Both presentations (government-wide
and fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the Town's
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accountability. An additional part of the basic financial statements are the notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Town of Westwood's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town of Westwood's assets and liabilities, and
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Town of Westwood is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, university station, human services,
culture and recreation and interest. The business-type activities include the activities of the sewer enterprise
fund.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Westwood, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the Town of Westwood can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town of Westwood's near-term
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

In accordance with accounting standards, the Town reports fund balance components as nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Additionally, the Town's stabilization fund is reported within the
general fund as unassigned. The Town of Westwood adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund.
A budgetary comparison schedule is included as required supplementary information for the general fund to
demonstrate compliance with this budget.
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Proprietary funds. The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses an enterprise fund to account for its sewer operations.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the Town of Westwood's own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the Town of Westwood, government-wide assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $116.6 million at the close of year 2014.

Net position of $107.4 million (92%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and
equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The Town uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town of Westwood's net position $1.7 million (2%) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $7.5
million (6%) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Governmental Activities: Balance at Balance at
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013
Assets:
CUrmrent @sselS........coouviiiiiiiiiiiiiniiciiiee i $ 32,993,859 $ 27,611,258
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital).. 10,094,615 11,207,142
Capital assets, not being depreciated 5,858,382 5,858,382
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation....... 112,982,360 114,387,912
Total @SSetS......ccuvvivririrvriniiiiiniiissisrsseaenes 161,929,216 159,064,694
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt)............c......c.c.. 5,292,738 5,573,172
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt).. . 20,596,909 18,128,398
Currentdebt...........ooveeieiiiinns . 3,632,917 3,817,917
Noncurrent debt. 31,603,159 33,401,249
Total liabilities 61,125,723 60,920,736
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets.................ccccee.... 95,611,881 96,462,678
Restricted............ccovvvveviinnnnns . 1,655,112 1,806,455
Unrestricted 3,536,500 (125,175)
Total net position.........ccccevviiiiiiiiiniiiiininnnnns $ 100,803,493 S 98,143,958
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Governmental activities. The governmental activities net position increased by approximately $2.7 million
during the current year. The underlying reason for the increase in net position is $5.3 million in mitigation
payments and building permit fees received for the university station project which was offset by the increase in
the other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability of $2.5 million this year. The increase in the OPEB liability is
also the reason for the increase in noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt).

Governmental Activities:

Program revenues:
Charges for ServiCes............coevuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaennn.
Operating grants and contributions.
Capital grants and contributions...................c.......
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes.................
Motor vehicle excise taxes......
Penalties and interest on taxes......
Nonrestricted grants and contributions..
Unrestricted investment income..
Gain on sale of capital assets..
TORAI FOVORUION . cousasnansansasassasassnnsssansanunsnnasans

Expenses:

General government..
Public safety..........
Education...........coovviiiiiiiii e
PUblic WOrkS. .......ooouiiiiii e
University Station.
HUMAN SeIVICES. .....ccuuiviiiiiiiiiiieie e
Culture and recreation...............ccoooueeeieieeiiennnnn..
Interest

Total eXPenSes.......ivuiruiiiiiniiiiareiirinrrarennenn.

Excess (Deficiency) before transfers......................
Transfers.......cooviieiiiiiiiiiini e
Change in net position..........cccovevviiiniiniiniiinieennn,
Net position - beginning...........ccccceeeiiiiiiiiiiininnnnnn,

Net position - ending.........ccovvvieiiiiiiiniiiiincieen

$

$

Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013

5417971 $ 5,615,240
22,271,886 16,218,998
1,474,068 682,003
59,098,869 57,531,776
2,770,941 2,591,759
118,681 180,465
712,014 639,972
25,929 45,831

- 290,000
91,890,359 83,796,044
4,921,812 4,840,467
10,215,841 9,735,929
58,068,384 57,774,167
8,697,469 8,351,807
1,947,259 1,310,832
1,138,997 1,218,894
3,394,657 2,801,155
1,137,383 1,216,381
89,521,802 87,249,632
2,368,557 (3,453,588)
290,978 290,978
2,659,535 (3,162,610)
98,143,958 101,306,568
100,803,493 $ 98,143,958

« Charges for services represent about 8% of governmental activities resources. The Town can exercise
more control over this category of revenue than any other. Fees charged for services rendered that are
set by the Board of Selectmen are included in this category. Most of these resources apply to public
safety and education operations, such as building permits, ambulance revenue, athletic receipts,

kindergarten revenue and bus fees.
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Operating grants and contributions account for 23% of the governmental activities resources. Most of
these resources apply to university station and education operations. The current year increase is due to
the $5.3 million received from university station.

Capital grants and contributions account for 2% of the governmental activities resources. The increase
from the prior year can be attributable to the Town receiving $531,000 in private donations to be used for
the new library project.

FY14 Governmental Revenues

Grants and contributions mot
Peasities and interest an sestietnd o spesile

taxes programs
0 "
vestment income and
miscolanecus
o%

NOtor vehicle excise taxes
»

Operating grants and
contrduticns

Real estate and personal
property tazes Cagpital grants and

%

Property taxes are by far the most significant revenue source for the Town's governmental activities.
They comprise 67% of all resources. Real estate and personal property tax collections increased 3%
from the prior year. In Massachusetts, proposition 2 2 allows municipalities to increases tax rates up to 2
Y2 percent of the prior levy limit adjusted for new construction and certain approved debt service. Other
taxes and other revenues comprised a total of 4% of the governmental activities resources. These
primarily include excise taxes, nonrestricted grants, and investment earnings.

Education is by far the largest governmental activity of the Town with 65% of total governmental
expenses. Program revenues of $17 million provided direct support to education and $41.1 million in
taxes and other general revenue were needed to cover the remaining year 2014 operating expenses.
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+ General government, public safety, public works and university station are significant activities of the
Town. Program revenues for general government of $2.2 million, public safety of $1.5 million, public
works of $693,000 and $5.3 in university station directly supported $6.9 million, $10.2 million and $8.7
million of operating expenses, respectively. Taxes and other general revenue of $21.5 million were
needed to cover the remaining year 2014 operating expenses for general government, public safety and
public works. Combined, they represent 29% of governmental activity expenses.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities B Program revenues
B Expenses
$60,000,000 -
$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$30,000,000 -
$20,000,000
$10,000,000 +

$0

General Public safety Education Public works University Human services Culture and Interest

government station recreation

Business-type activities. For sewer business-type activities, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $15.8 million at the close of year 2014. Net investment
in capital assets totaled $11.8 million (75%) while unrestricted net position totaled $4 million (25%). There was a
net decrease of $621,000 in net position reported in connection with the sewer enterprise. Charges for services
increased from prior year by $206,000 which was primarily due to increases in sewer usage. Operating and
capital grants experienced a slight decrease from the prior year. The sewer fund also reported an increase in its
operating costs and a decrease in its liability for other postemployment benefits totaling $10,000, which is a result
of per-funding a portion of the OPEB liability in accordance with GASB Statement #45.
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Business-Type Activities: Balance at Balance at
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013
Assets:
CUMENE @SSELS. ..ooiiiieiiiiiiiieei et $ 5519437 $ 4,103,179
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital).. 201,611 248,407
Capital assets, not being depreciated.............. . - 350,850
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation...... 13,472,462 13,268,797
L= L T P 19,193,510 17,971,233
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt)........................ 543,961 42,261
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)... 227,403 237,244
Current debt...... 384,060 218,760
Noncurrent debt. 2,277,620 1,091,680
Total liabilities..........ccuvvieiiiienininnicieniiennnnnn 3,433,044 1,589,945
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets.............ccoccevvvnn. 11,776,682 12,309,207
Unrestricted...........cooeiiiiiiiiiiieie e 3,983,784 4,072,081
Total net position.......ccccvueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciininn $ 15,760,466 $ 16,381,288
Business-Type Activities: Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013

Program revenues:
Charges for ServiCeS........oouuvueeeriieeeeeeieeeeianennns $ 3,731,776 $ 3,525,289

Operating grants and contributions... 32,115 85,164

Capital grants and contributions.... 41,516 45,115

Total revenues.........ccceeeviviceiinnneniinnnnieennne, 3,805,407 3,655,568
Expenses:

SBWET ...ttt e e e 4,135,251 3,913,703
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers..................... (329,844) (258,135)
Transfers......coviiiiini (290,978) (290,978)
Change in net position.........ccccevvviiiiiiciniiiiiiicnnnnn, (620,822) (549,113)
Net position - beginning........ccccvciiieiininicnininneninnnn 16,381,288 16,930,401
Net position - ending.........cccueeuiiiiiiiiiniiiiciicennnnns $ 15,760,466 $ 16,381,288

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, The Town of Westwood uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town of Westwood's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Town of Westwood's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the year.
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As of the end of the current year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $25 million, an
increase of $5.2 from the prior year. The majority of this increase $6 million is reported in the general fund due to
the Town receiving $5.3 million of mitigation payments and building permit fees for the university station project.
The university station special revenue fund reported an increase of $393,000 as the receipts from this major
project have not been fully utilized and the nonmajor governmental funds reported a decrease of $1.3 million
related mainly to capital projects for road improvements, and facility renovations. Most of the construction costs
were financed with bond proceeds and bond premiums received in the current year as well as the prior year. For
fund based reporting bond proceeds and premiums are reported as other financing sources.

The general fund is the Town's chief operating fund. The ending fund balance increased by $6 million in
comparison with prior year. The primarily reason for the increase is due to mitigation payments and building
permit fees collected for the university station project. The Town expended some of the mitigation funds and has
reserved the remainder in the general fund. Also contributing to the increase was stronger than expected motor
vehicle excise tax collections due to an increase in the assessed value of registered motor vehicles supplied by
the Commonwealth. Real estate and personal property tax collections increased 3% from the prior year. In
Massachusetts, proposition 2 2 allows municipalities to increases tax rates up to 2 ¥z percent of the prior levy
limit adjusted for new construction and certain approved debt service. Also, during the current year residents paid
their taxes in a timely manner. Another contributing factor was budgetary turn-backs in employee benefits, and
the reserve fund. Benefit turn-backs are in line with budget predictions as health insurance costs are included in
this function and can fluctuate during the year. The reserve fund was able to turn-back funds due to the Town's
use of free cash to cover the snow and ice deficit, as opposed to using reserve funds, due to the severe winter.
These increases were offset by the Towns planed use of available fund balance.

At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund totaled $8.8 million, while total fund
balance totaled $15.6 million. The $5.4 million of committed fund balance represents amounts that have been
appropriated for specific purposes. The $1.4 million of assigned fund balance represents amounts that have been
encumbered at year end to meet contractual obligations at year end. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity,
it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 11% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
20% of that same amount.

The Town also maintains a stabilization fund, which has been classified within the unassigned general fund
balance in the governmental funds financial statements to remain compliant with GASB 54. The stabilization fund
has a year-end balance of $2.7 million which represents 3.5% of general fund expenditures. These funds can be
used for general or capital purposes upon Town Meeting approval. Please refer to Note 12 for additional
information on the Town’s stabilization fund.

The university station project fund is used to account for funds received in connection with the university station
project. At June 30, 2014, the university station project fund had a year-end balance of $741,000. This balance
increased by $393,000 from prior year as the Town recognized $1.4 million in revenue and recorded $1 million in
project expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The final general fund appropriation budget totaled $78.5 million, which included $2.3 million in encumbrances
and articles carried over from the prior year. The final budget also included the use of $1.1 million in available

funds and $5.3 million in university station mitigation funds which netted with positive budgetary results for an
increase of $6 million on a budgetary basis.
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General fund revenues came in over budget by $1.3 million. The majority of this surplus $709,000 (56%) was
generated from motor vehicle excise taxes and $272,000 (21%) was generated through licenses and permits.

Actual general fund expenditures and encumbrances are lower than final budget by $1.3 million (2%), with the
majority of the variance occurring in employee benefits where expenditures were lower than the final budget by
approximately $387,000, which is the result of health insurance plan design changes implemented by the Town in
an effort to control costs in this area. Additionally, the reserve fund turned back $425,000, as reserve funds were
not fully required to fund unanticipated events.

The $5.9 million increase between the original budget and the final amended budget was primarily from $5.3
million in university station mitigation fees and permits appropriated and reserved within the general fund.
Budgetary changes also included supplementary appropriations from free cash to fund the Town’s snow and ice
budget and appropriations from the ambulance fund, the reserve fund and from a release of overlay surplus to
fund the capital outlay budget, the public safety budget, the public works budget, and various salary increases.
Additionally the Town voted several transfers within budgetary line items during the year.

Capital Assets and Debt Management

In conjunction with the operating budget, the Town annually prepares a capital budget which includes detailed
information concerning those capital requests for the upcoming year as well as summary information for the
following four years to identify current projections of what level of capital outlay will be required in future years.
As part of the capital plan the Town has historically financed the acquisition of some capital assets from current
revenue. This policy will continue to improve the financial position as net position will increase by the amount of
acquisitions less the current depreciation.

Major capital assets are funded by the issuance of long and short-term debt and capital grants. The effect on net
position during the construction phase of the project is neutral for assets acquired with debt since the Town
increases its assets and associated liability by the same amount. In subsequent years the net position will be
reduced through depreciation and will be increased by the revenues raised to support the debt principal
payments. Net position is increased for assets acquired with grant funds since there is no corresponding liability
incurred.

Outstanding long-term debt of the general government, as of June 30, 2014, totaled $34.1 million of which, $7.9
million is related to library projects, $21.8 million is related to school projects, $2.7 million is related to roadway
improvements and $2.1 million for department equipment.

The enterprise fund has $2.7 million in sewer enterprise debt outstanding that is fully supported by the rates and
does not rely on a general fund subsidy.

The most significant capital asset additions during the year included various school building improvements, public
safety and public works vehicles, school computers and equipment, and roadway improvements. Also, current
year expenditures for the new library have been capitalized as building improvements as of June 30, 2014.

Please refer to notes 6, 7, and 8 to the financial statements for further discussion of the Town’'s major capital and
debt activity.
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CAPITAL ASSETS
Accumulated
Depreciation
Cost of atend Capital

Governmental activities: Capital Assets of year Assets, net
Land......coovviiiiiiiiiiii e $ 5,858,382 $ -8 5,858,382
Buildings and improvements........... 108,128,925 (33,775,911) 74,353,014
Vehicles.........oooeviiiiiiiiiiiicciiins 8,233,798 (4,889,807) 3,343,991
Machinery and equipment. . 12,259,279 (9,942,572) 2,316,707
Infrastructure.............cccoeeviiiiennen, 88,625,294 (55,656,646) 32,968,648

Total governmental activities.......... 223,105,678 (104,264,936) 118,840,742
Business-type activities:

Land......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 350,850 - 350,850

Plant and infrastructure................. 27,074,977 (16,930,446) 10,144,531
Other buildings and improvements. .. 6,339,070 (3,605,255) 2,733,815
Vehicles........ooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiciiins 448,343 (411,176) 37,167
Machinery and equipment.............. 510,212 (304,113) 206,099

Total business-type activities.......... 34,723,452 (21,250,990) 13,472,462

Total capital assets.............cccceee.. $ 257,829,130 $  (125,515,926) $ 132,313,204

GOVERNMENTAL BONDS PAYABLE
Original Outstanding Outstanding
Maturity Loan Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Through Amount Rate (%) 2013 Issued Redeemed 2014

Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008 2023 $ 3,830,000 3.50-4.00 $ 2105000 $ -3 (335,000) $ 1,770,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2009.. 2029 3,500,000 2.13-5.00 2,800,000 - (175,000) 2,625,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2010...... 2031 9,300,000 3.25-4.00 8,370,000 - (465,000) 7,905,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 201 2023 61,198,000 2.00-4.00 18,995,000 - (2,300,000) 16,695,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013 2022 4,635,000 2.00-3.00 4,170,000 - (465,000) 3,705,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2014 2024 2,970,000 2.00-250 - 1,400,000 - 1,400,000
Total Governmental Activities........ asssasasassnsasnansains asasasne aateassssssaisisessssaissasstasaissssessnsa, $_36.440.000 $_ 1.400.000 $ (3.740.000) $ 34.100.000
ENTERPRISE BONDS PAYABLE
Original Outstanding Outstanding
Maturity Loan Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Through Amount Rate (%) 2013 Issued Redeemed 2014
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 1998 (MCWT)...... 2019 § 3,220,700 3.88 $ 1,140,600 $ -8 (176,300) $ 964,300
MWRA Notes of 2013, 2017 212,300 0.00 169,840 - (42,460) 127,380
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2014.. 2024 1,570,000 2.00-2.50 - 1,570,000 - 1,570,000
Total Enterprise Bonds Payable.................ooviviiiiiiiimieieiecisinics e ees e $ 1310440 $§ 1,570,000 S 5218.760) $ 2661680

The Town of Westwood has an “AAA” rating from Standard & Poor's and an “Aa1” from Moody's for general
obligation debt.
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Other Postemployment Benefits

In accordance with GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pension (OPEB), the government-wide activities have accumulated a liability for other
postemployment benefits totaling $20.3 million as of June 30, 2014 and have pre-funded future obligations
totaling approximately $505,000 during year 2014. The total assets set aside in trust for future benefits amounted
to approximately $1.1 million at year-end.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

For the year 2015 budget, the Town has projected modest improvement in major revenue categories over the
previous year's budget. General tax revenues are expected to increase by approximately 3%, and our state aid is
scheduled to slightly increase in the Chapter 70 education account. Economic driven local receipts; such as
motor vehicle excise payments and buildings permits, have also been slightly increased for 2015 after improved
collections in recent years.

The modest revenue increases and improvements have allowed the Town to make the following conservative
budget decisions:

e The Town provided for an approximate 3-4% increase for the 2015 school and municipal operating
budgets.

« Favorable settlement of labor contracts allowed the Town and Schools to remain within this increase
while maintaining current staffing levels.

* The 2015 budget has increased capital budgets through additional use of free cash.

e The 2015 budget provides for a $100,000 appropriation to the stabilization reserve account. This is
an ongoing appropriation funded within the budget.

* The 2015 budget provides for a $550,000 appropriation to the OPEB Trust account. This is an
ongoing appropriation funded with the budget.

* The 2015 commercial and residential tax rates are not yet finalized, but are expected to increase
approximately 2.7%.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Westwood's finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report

or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, Town Hall, 580
High Street, Westwood, Massachusetts 02090.
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Basic Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equr S 28,573,095 § 3.805.961 § 32,379,056
19,681 - 19,681
560,038 - 560,038
927,636 - 927,636
316,331 - 316,331
- 1,666,680 1,666,680
262,914 - 262914
9 2,334,186 46.796 2.380.962
Total Current Assets. 32,993,859 5.519.437 38,513,296
NONCURRENT:
net of for
10,084,615 201811 10,296,226
Capital assets, not being depreciated................cccccunnn 5,858,382 - 5,858,382
Capital assets, net of 112,982,380 13.472.462 126,454,822
Total NONCUIrent ASSBIS. ............oooiviimimnninmmnnin 128,935,357 13,674,073 142,609,430
TOTAL ASSETS. 161,929,216 19.193.510 181,122,726
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable 1,642,148 499,290 2,141,438
1.731,721 15.736 1,747 457
240,289 11,935 252,224
470,195 - 470,195
144,385 - 144,385
1,064,000 17.000 1,081,000
Bonds payable. 3,632,917 384,060 4,016,977
Total Current Liabilites ......... 8,925,655 928,021 9,853,676
NONCURRENT:
434,827 - 434,827
. 528,000 - 528,000
Other benefits. 20,068,909 227403 20,296,312
Bonds payable. 31,168,332 2.277.620 33,445,952
Total Noncurrent Liabilities.............. 52,200,088 2,505,023 54,705,091
TOTAL LIABILITIES, 61,125,723 3.433.044 84,558,767
NET POSITION
Net in capital assets. 95,611,881 11,776,682 107,388,563
Restricted for:
Permanent funds:
100,188 - 100,189
S— e 349,547 - 349,547
IS 305,370 - 305,370
Grants. 900,006 - 900,006
L 3,536,500 3.983.784 7.520,284
TOTAL NET POSITION. s 100,803,493 $ 15.760.466  § 116,563,959

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
E Services Contributions. Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government.. .. S 4921812 § 531642 $ 61,758 $ - $ (4,328.412)
10,215,841 1,370,625 121,099 - (8,724,117)
58,068,384 2,463,005 14,515,510 - (41,089,869)
8,697,469 31,943 143,849 517,694 (8,003,983)
University Station 1,947,259 - 6,896,682 - 4,949,423
Human services. 1,138,997 88,449 117,403 - (933,145)
Culture and recreation.. . 3,394,657 932,307 91,309 956,374 (1,414,667)
IROTOBR. o soeessrescesnssssssnansssannsninssnanse 1,137,383 - 324,276 - (813,107)
Total Governmental Activities........... 89,521,802 5,417,971 22,271,886 1,474,068 (60,357,877)
Business-Type Activities:
SOWEN.....oiieeciiiecieee e 4,135,251 3,731,776 32,115 41,516 (329,844)
Total Primary Government............... S _ 93657053 $ 9,149.747 $ _ 22304001 § _ 1515584 § (60,687,721)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net position: )
Net (expense) revenue from previous page.................. $ (60,357,877) S (329844) S (60,687.721)
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds payable 59,098,869 - 59,098,869
Motor vehicle excise taxes... 2,770,941 - 2,770,941
Penalties and interest on taxes... 118,681 - 118,681
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs. 712,014 - 712,014
Unrestricted investment income.. 25,929 - 25,929
Transfers, net 290,978 (290,978) -
Total general revenues and transfers..............c.ceeeeenn 63,017,412 (290,978) 62,726,434
Change in net position..............ceveviiieiiiecnenienn. 2,659,535 (620,822) 2,038,713
Net Position:
Beginning of year............ccooooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 98,143,958 16,381,288 114,525,246
End of year.......cooooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i $ 100,803,493 $ 15,760.466  $ 116,563,959
See notes to basic financial statements.
(Concluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2014
University Nonmajor Total
Station Governmental Governmental
General Project Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents... . $ 18721660 $ 741360 $ 9,110,075 $ 28,573,095
Investments - - 19,681 19,681
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:

Real estate and personal property taxes 560,036 - - 560,036

Tax liens 927,636 - - 927,636

Motor vehicle excise taxes 316,331 - - 316,331

Departmental and other, 9,882 133,844 119,188 262,914

Intergovernmental...............viieeeiiiiniiiiiiiiiienans 11,207,000 - 1,221,781 12,428,781
TOTAL ASSETS .8 31742545 S 875,204 $ 10,470,725 $ 43,088,474
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable 1,135838 $ - 8 506,310 $ 1,642,148

Accrued payroll.. 1,722,881 - 8,840 1,731,721

Other liabilities. 470,195 - - 470,195
TOTAL LIABILITIES....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccciiiiiicaiis 3,328,914 - 515,150 3,844,064
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues...............cccoevvieecnniiicnnnn. 12,796,350 133,844 1,340,969 14,271,163
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable. - - 349,547 349,547

Restricted.... - 741,360 8,265,059 9,006,419

Committed 5,431,729 - - 5,431,729

Assigned.. 1,385,604 - - 1,385,604

Unassigned.... 8,799,948 - - 8,799,948
TOTAL FUND BALANCES...........ooovviiiiiiiiiieeees 15,617,281 741,360 8,614,606 24,973,247

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES......... $ 31,742,545 § 875,204 $ 10,470,725 $  43,088.474

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Total governmental fund BalANCES. ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e aaaas

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds................cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii e

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable in the funds............ccvvvieriiiiiisneennn.

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due.................cccccceeennnn

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds

BONAS PAYADIE. ...ttt e et
Capital lease obligations
Other postemployment benefits .
Componsatod ADBONCHB......cooimusssssiaaisnacasesssnnssesssunsssasonssoassnnssssssassssansssasansnne

Net effect of reporting long-term liabilities....

Net position of governmental activities..................ooiiiiiiiiiiiii e

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds

Motor vehicle excise taxes.
Charges for services...
University Station mitigati
University Station building permits.
Penalties and interest on taxes

TOTAL REVENUES.

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General g

Public safety.

Public works
Uni ity Station.
Human services.
Culture and recreation
Pension benefits
Property and liability i
benefits.
State and county Charges. ...........ooiveiireiinieiirenieresiensinnnnns
Capital QUUAY. ........cveveereeeeeseseseeneaeieneneens
Debt service:

Interest.

TOTAL EXPENDITURES........oimiiiiniiininie i

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES..........ooooiiiiiiiiiins

of long-
Capital lease fi
Transfers in
Transfersout..................

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)..........
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ..o

FUND BALANCES AT OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR........c.cocimiimiimiiininiinns

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts

University Nonmajor Total
Station G
General Project Funds Funds
58,918,129 § -3 - 8 58,918,129
2,844,489 - - 2,844,489
: - 4,774,815 4,774,815
4,400,000 - - 4,400,000
925,000 - - 925,000
118,681 - - 118,681
341,562 - - 341,562
643,568 - - 643,568
18,587 - - 18,587
13,149,360 - 3,246,263 16,395,623
298,525 1,437,838 382,823 2,119,186
- - 782,122 782,122
30,807 - 4,158 34,965
81,688,708 1,437,838 9,190,181 92,316,727
2,790,924 - 345,122 3,136,046
7421121 - 218,276 7,639,397
36,269,527 - 6,377,628 42,647,155
4,727,689 - 2,507,960 7,235,649
902,343 1,044,916 - 1,947,259
763,475 - 48,586 812,081
1,392,475 - 1,575,141 2,967,616
9,356,600 - - 9,356,600
290,897 - - 290,897
6,574,999 - - 6,574,999
574,743 - - 574,743
1,437,805 - - 1,437,805
3,740,000 - - 3,740,000
1,236,197 - - 1,236.197
77,478,795 1,044,916 11,072,713 89,596,424
4209913 392,922 (1.882,532) 2,720.303
- - 1,400,000 1,400,000
748,083 - - 748,083
1,087,606 - - 1,087,606
- - (796.628) (796.628)
1,835,689 - 603,372 2,439,061
6,045,602 392,922 (1.279,160) 5,159,364
9,571,679 348,438 9,893,766 19,813,883
15617281 § 741,360 $ 8,614,606 S 24,973,247
20 Comprehensive A | Fii ial Report
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net change in fund bal - total g funds.. S 5,159,364

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and rep as depreciati

CAPIAl OULIAY. ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e s e nae 5,813,248
Depreciation @XPEeNSe. .........c..ciiiiiiimiiinieciiiieiaeiae e aaaans (7,218.800)

Net effect of reporting capital @ssets...........covciuiiiiiiniiiiiiie e (1,405,552)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
are fully deferred in the St of , E i and
Changes in Fund Bal T f the ition of for various
types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in UNAvaIlable MeVENUE. ...............i ittt ea e e e e e e aaieens (426,368)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt the fi i of gt funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.

Capital lease financing...

Capital lease principal payments.
Proceeds from bonds and note:
Debt service principal payments..

(748,083)
168,871

(1,400,000)
3,740,000

Net effect of reporting Iong-term debl.....................o..coow.oooemreoeeeeeeeeereeree, 1,760,788

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current fi ial and, , are not reported as i
in the governmental funds.

Net change in compensated absences accrual... (70,000)
Net change in accrued interest on long-term deb! - 98,814
Net change in other p benefits........ccooviiiiiii . (2,457,511)

Net effect of recording long-term liabilities. (2.428.697)

Change in net position of governmental activities.................coooiiiiii S 2.659.535

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014

Business-type
Sewer
Enterprise
ASSETS -
CURRENT:

Cash and cash equivalents..
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

$ 3,805,961

1,666,680

Intergovernmental.... 46,796

Total CUMENE @SSOS......uiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i e e 5,519,437
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Intergovernmental 201,611
Capital assets, not being depreciated. ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 350,850
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation...............oiiiiiiiiiciiiiiiiii i 13,121,612

Total NONCUITENt @SSEIS. ...t e 13,674,073
I 19,193,510
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable 499,290
Accrued payroll 15,736
Accrued interest 11,935
Compensated absences.. 17,000
Bonds payable............ 384,060
Total current Habilities. .............oouuuiiiiii e 928,021
NONCURRENT:
Other postemployment Benefits. ..............ooiiiiiiiiii e 227,403
BONAS PAYADIE. ....oiiiiiii it a et e e e aaaaas 2,277,620
Total noncurrent liabilities. . 2,505,023
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...ttt a e e in e 3,433,044
NET POSITION
Net invested in Captal @SSES...........ciiiiiii et eee e aaannn 11,776,682
UNPESIACIE. ...t e e e s s a e e e e e e n e e e e aaaaae 3,983,784
TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 15,760,466

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Business-type
Sewer

Enterprise
OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services .. 3,731,776
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration 962,988
MWRA assessment . 2,362,136
Depreciation.........ccoeveviieviinnnnnnns 757,698
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et s ettt s e e eaa e e et 4,082,822
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....ciiiiittitieeeee et ettt s e e e e ee e e e ave it e e e e e eaeeaae (351,046)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest expense (52,429)
Intergovernmental 32,115
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.....ccccuviiiiiiiiiiiinieciieiiiiiiiiees (20.314)
INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS........ccuuviieeaenens (371,360)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:

SeWer DeterMENtS. ....uuu i e 41,516

TRANSFERS:

TPANSIEIS OUL. ...ttt (290.978)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION......cuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis ittt (620,822)

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ttt et e a et e aeeannns 16,381,288
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR ... .ouiiiiiiiii ittt $ 15,760,466

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2014

Business-type
Sewer
Enterprise
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users. 3,790,335
Payments to vendors (2,862,991)
Payments t0 @MPIOYEES. ... ...uuuuuuiiieiiiiiiiii e e rriiii s s assaana s e e e e (345,239)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.... 582,105
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TrANSIEIS OUL....oiiiiieeiiiceeeeee e e e e e e eaaanne e e e e e e e eeeaneeeeeeaaens (290,978)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes.............ovvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 1,570,000
Acquisition and construction of capital assets. (239,853)
Capital contributions 41,516
Principal payments on bonds and notes.. (170,817)
Interest expense (16,009)
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.............. 1,184,837
NET CHANGE IN CASH EQUIVALENTS.......cuviiiiiiiiinineessssssiiiniiniininnan 1,475,964
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,329,997
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR......ccccooiiiiiiiiiniiiiecins $ 3,805,961
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
EROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (JOSS).....vuueeeeeiiiiie e it eaii e e e e e s saaae e s e e eaaiiaeeeaas $ (351,046)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activities:
DEPrECIAtION. ... ittt aaan 757,698
Changes in assets and liabilities:
User fees 58,559
Warrants payable 115,911
Accrued payroll 9,824
Accrued compensated absences. . 1,000
Other postemployment benefits..... (9.841)
Total adj e 933,151
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES......ooiiiiiiiiiiieeeic e evae e $ 582,105
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Intergovernmental debt service Subsidy...............cuvueiiiiiiiiiiii $ 80,058

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITON

JUNE 30, 2014

Other
Postemployment Private
Benefit Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Trust Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents....................cccovienneannein. S 1,117,304 $ 303,709 $ 744,211
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Departmental and other.................ccoiiiin - - 89,002
TOTAL ASSETS. ..ttt e 1,117,304 303,709 833,213
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable... - - 25
Liabilities due depositors... - - 833,188
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... - - 833,213
NET POSITION
Held in trust for OPEB and other purposes.................... S 1,117,304 $ 303,709 $ -
See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Other
Postemployment Private
Benefit Purpose
Trust Fund Trust Funds
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Employer. $ 435000 $ -

Private donations... - 57,105
Total CONADUONS. ........vviiieiiiiiiiiiiee e 435,000 57,105

Net investment income:

Interest 1,976 1,990

TOTAL ADDITIONS ...ttt e bbb iabaas b aaaaaan 504,976 59,095
DEDUCTIONS:

Educational SCholarshiPs. ............ueiireiiiiiee et ee e ee e e e e e e e e e eeaes - 90,450
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS - 90,450
CHANGE INNET POSITION. ..o 504,976 (31,355)

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiinniiiinssinsssnsssssiennnenans 612,328 335,064
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR.......iiiiiiiiiiniiieesi i issssssassssananasseesseaaanns $ 1,117,304 § 303,709
See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I
The accompanying basic financial statements of the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts (the Town) have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant Town accounting policies are
described herein.

A. Reporting Entity
An elected three-member Board of Selectmen governs the Town.

For financial reporting purposes, the Town has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially
accountable as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Town are such that exclusion would cause the Town's basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
As required by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the Town (the Primary Government) and its
component units. The Town did not identify any component units requiring inclusion in the basic financial
statements.

Joint Ventures

The Town has entered into a joint venture with the Towns of Avon, Canton, Dedham, Braintree, Holbrook, Milton,
Norwood, and Randolph to pool resources and share the costs, risks and rewards of providing vocational
education through the Blue Hills Regional Technical School District (District). As of June 30, 2014, the District
has no significant unassigned fund balance and has no outstanding long-term bonds. The following is the
address where the District’s financial statements are available, its purpose, and the assessment paid by the Town
during year 2014.

2014
Joint venture and address Purpose Assessment
Blue Hills Regional Technical School District To provide vocational education $ 101,646

800 Randolph Street, Canton, MA 02021
The Town has no equity interest in the District.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Board of Selectmen is responsible for appointing three of the six-member Board of Water Commissioners of
the Dedham-Westwood Water District. The Town's accountability for this organization does not extend beyond
making these appointments.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of changes in net

position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units.
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Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Major Fund Criteria
Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

« If the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding element (assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, etc.) for all fund of that category or type (total governmental or
total enterprise funds), and

« If the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at
least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly
significant to the basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include the following:

« Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

* Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular
function or segment.

* Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or
segment.
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Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial
statements. However, the effect of interfund services provided and used between functions is not eliminated as
the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions
affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to
be liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
year-end. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become measurable
and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund.

The University Station Project fund is used to account for the funds received in connection with the development
and renovation of the new train station as well as residential, commercial, and retail units.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and

use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary fund is reported:

The sewer enterprise fund is used to account for the Town's sewer activities.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting except for the agency fund, which has no measurement focus. Fiduciary
funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for others that cannot be used to support the
governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The other postemployment benefit trust fund is used to account for and accumulate resources to provide funding
for future OPEB (other postemployment benefit) liabilities.

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements that exclusively benefit individuals,
private organizations, or other governments. Some of these trusts have donor restrictions and trustee policies
that do not allow the endowment portion and any unrealized appreciation to be spent. The donor restrictions and
trustee policies only allows the trustees to authorize spending of the realized investment earnings. The Town's
educational scholarship trusts are accounted for in this fund.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity. The Town’s agency fund
consists primarily of student activities and planning deposits.

D. Cash and Investments
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value. The fair values were determined by the closing price for those securities
traded on national stock exchanges and at the average bid-and-asked quotation for those securities traded in the
over-the-counter market.

E.A nts Receivabl

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of

accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1* and May 1** and are subject to penalties and interest if they are
not paid by the respective due date. Real estate tax liens are processed annually on delinquent properties. Real
estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the year of the levy and are recorded
under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Real estate tax liens are processed six months after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and
are recorded as receivables in the year they are processed.

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly,
an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered and are recorded as receivables in
the year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and the
fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of
value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.
User Fees

Sewer fees are levied quarterly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if
they are not paid by the respective due date. Sewer liens are processed in October of every year and included as
a lien on the property owner's tax bill. Sewer charges are recorded as receivables in the year of the levy and are
recorded under the full accrual basis of accounting.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of police details, ambulance fees and school rentals and are
recorded as receivables in the year accrued. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on historical
trends and specific account analysis.

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met. These receivables are considered 100%
collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
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E. Inventories

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
basic financial statements and therefore are not reported.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, furniture
and fixtures, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, street lights, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity column of the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Except for the
capital assets of the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements, construction
period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $10,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or
construction, respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

The Town has included all general infrastructure assets regardless of their acquisition date or amount. The Town
was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through backtracking.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful

Life

Capital Asset Type (in years)
Buildings and improvements..................... 7-40
Plant and infrastructure..............ccooevuveennns 7-40
Other buildings and improvements.. 7-40
Vehicles............cccuuueenn. 5-10
Machinery and equipment. 5-50
Infrastructure.............cooovviiiiiiiiienns 5-50

H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of R r
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Town did not have any items that quality for reporting in this
category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. The Town did not have any items that quality for reporting in this category.
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. The Town has recorded unavailable revenue as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental
funds balance sheet. Unavailable revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide
(full accrual) financial statements.

I Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as “internal
balances”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

J. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds and are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of activities. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

K. Net Position and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

Net position reported as “net investment in capital assets” includes capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceeds of

capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets. Outstanding debt related to future reimbursements
from the state’s school building program is not considered to be capital related debt.
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Net position is reported as restricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net position has been “restricted for” the following:

“Permanent funds — expendable” represents the amount of realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor
restricted trusts. The donor restrictions and trustee policies only allows the trustees to approve spending of the
realized investment earnings that support governmental programs.

“Permanent funds — nonexpendable” represents the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts that support
governmental programs.

“Gifts and Grants” — represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and
unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to
consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned
based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments’ or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. Town Meeting is the
highest level of decision making authority that can, by Town Meeting vote, commit funds for a specific purpose.
Once voted, the limitation imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended
purpose or a Town Meeting vote is taken to rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Town'’s by-laws authorize the Town Accountant to assign
fund balance. Assignments generally only exist temporarily. Additional action does not have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment.

“Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.

The Town’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
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Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.

L. Long-term debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

M. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income from proprietary funds is voluntarily assigned and transferred to the general fund.
N. Compensated Absen:

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.

Compensated absences are reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured.

O. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.
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P. Total Column
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents”. The deposits and investments of the
trust funds are held separately from those of other Town funds.

The Town follows internal investment policies as well as investment policies established under Massachusetts
General Laws. The Commonwealth’s statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury,
agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank
deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment Pool (the Pool). Additionally, they allow the Town to invest trust
funds in trust companies incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth, banking companies incorporated
under the laws of the Commonwealth which are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC),
national banks, in participation units in combined investment funds, in paid-up shares and accounts of and in
cooperative banks, in shares of savings and loan associations, in shares or savings deposits of federal savings
and loan associations doing business in the Commonwealth to an amount not exceeding one hundred thousand
dollars, and in bonds or notes which are legal investments for savings banks. Municipalities having trust funds in
the custody of the Treasurer in an aggregate amount in excess of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars may also
invest trust funds in securities, other than mortgages and collateral loans, which are legal for the investment of
funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth provided that not more than fifteen percent of any
such trust funds shall be invested in bank stocks and insurance company stocks, nor shall more than one and
one-half percent of such funds be invested in the stock of any one bank or insurance company.

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts who serves as Trustee. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same as the value of the
Pool shares.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may not be returned
toit. The Town's deposit and investment policy allows for unlimited investments in MMDT, U.S. Treasuries and
Agencies that will be held to maturity with maturities up to one year from the date of purchase, and bank accounts
and Certificates of Deposit with maturities up to one year which are fully collateralized or fully insured.

Additionally, the Town'’s policy allows for investments in unsecured bank deposits such as checking, savings,
money market or Certificates of Deposit with maturities up to three months. Unsecured deposits in each
institution are limited to no more than 5% of an institution’s assets and no more than 20% of the Town’s total
cash. Atyear-end, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $28,004,722 and the bank balance totaled
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$28,183,294. Of the bank balance, $2,000,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $2,183,130 was
covered by the Depositors Insurance Fund, $53,710 was covered by the Share Insurance Fund, $15,891,274 was
collateralized and $8,055,180 was subject to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

As of June 30, 2014, the Town had the following investments:

Equity Mutual Funds.........ccccceeuenee $ 19,681
MMDT ..o 5,422,254
Total Investments...........ccccoveunne $ 5441935

In addition to the Town's investments reported above, the OPEB Trust held $1,117,304 at June 30, 2014, which
was invested in MMDT.

The Town participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash portfolio and a short-term bond fund with combined
average maturities of approximately 3 months.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the Town will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of the outside party. At June
30, 2014, the Town does not have any custodial credit risk exposure for its investments since open-end mutual
funds and MMDT deposits are not subject to custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. In addition to the deposit and investment restrictions listed
above, the Town'’s investment policies allow for trust funds to be invested in any instruments allowed by the Legal
List issued by the Banking Commissioner each July. Stabilization funds may be invested in National Banks,
Savings Banks, Cooperative banks or trust companies organized under Massachusetts laws, Securities legal for
savings banks (i.e. those included in the Legal List issued annually by the Banking Commissioner), Federal
Savings and Loan Associations situated in the Commonwealth and the MMDT.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates could adversely affect the fair
value of the Town's investments. The Town manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates by limiting the allowable maturities of investments. The Town's investment policy limits the
maturities of investments in U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agencies and secured Certificates of Deposit to a maximum of
one year from the date of purchase. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit are limited to a maximum of three months.
The Town had no debt securities as of June 30, 2014.

Credit Risk

The Town’s policy for Credit Risk requires all brokerage houses and broker/dealers wishing to do business with
the Town to supply the Treasurer with audited financial statements, proof of National Association of Security
Dealers certification, a statement that the dealer has read the Town’s investment policy and will comply with it and
proof of credit worthiness with minimum standards of at least five years in operation and a minimum capital of $10
million. All of the Town's investments are unrated.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town limits the amount that may be invested in any one issuer, except for MMDT, to no more than 5% of an
institution’s assets and no more than 30% of the Town's total investments. At June 30, 2014, the Town did not

have more than 5% of the Town's investments in with any one issuer.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2014, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,

including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 560,036 $ - 8 560,036
Taxliens.......cccceuueennns 927,636 - 927,636
Motor vehicle excise taxes.. 392,331 (76,000) 316,331
Departmental and other... . 279,914 (17,000) 262,914
Intergovernmental..............oooviiiiiiiiiiii 12,428,781 - 12,428,781
TOMAl e $ 14588698 $ (93,000) $ 14,495,698
At June 30, 2014, receivables for the fiduciary funds consist of the following:
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
DELAIIS. ....eeveeeieiiiicie e e e e e e e s $ 89,002 § - 8 89,002
At June 30, 2014, receivables for the enterprise fund consist of the following:
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
SEWET fBES....oeeieeiieieiiiiie e $ 1666680 $ - 8 1,666,680
Intergovernmental...........c...ooeviiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeans 248,407 - 248,407
TORA.....ociieseeniinnnaannanasnnsnannssnsnssnnnsansassanasanans $ 1,915,087 $ - 8 1,915,087
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Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current year, the various
components of unavailable revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Receivable type:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 335,501 $ - 8 335,501
Tax liens.......ccoceeevevvennnnn. 927,636 - 927,636
Motor vehicle excise taxes.. 316,331 - 316,331
Departmental and other...............cccoevevieenneennen. 9,882 253,032 262,914
Intergovernmental...........ccccoveviiiiiiiieiiie s 11,207,000 1,221,781 12,428,781
Total s $ 12,796,350 $ 1,474,813 $ 14,271,163

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014, are summarized as follows:

Transfers Out:

General
Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Fund...
Nonmajor Governmental Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Fund
Sewer Enterprise FUNd.........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis

43128 (A)
17.000 (B)
665,500 (C)
70,000 (D)
1,000 (E)

290,978 (F)

1,087,606

(A) - Transfer from Special Revenue Bond Premiums Fund to support debt service expenditures.
(B) - Transfer from Special Revenue Revolving Funds to support conservation expenditures.

(C) - Transfer from Special Revenue Ambulance Receipts for ambulance operations.
(D) - Transfer from Special Revenue Sale of Lots for cemetery operations.

(E) - Transfer from Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund to support cemetery expenditures.
(F) - Transfer from Sewer Fund to the General Fund for indirect cost reimbursements.

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The Town contributes to the Norfolk County Contributory Retirement System (the System), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Norfolk County Retirement
Board. Substantially all employees of the Town are members of the System, except for public school teachers
and certain administrators who are members of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Teachers Retirement
System, to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the
Teachers Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf
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payments totaled approximately $6,458,000 for the year ended June 30, 2014, and, accordingly, are reported in
the General Fund as Intergovernmental Revenues and Pension Expenditures.

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Norfolk County Contributory Retirement Board and are
borne by the System. The System issues a publicly available financial report in accordance with guidelines
established by the Commonwealth's Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may
be obtained by contacting the System located at 480 Neponset Street, Building 15, Canton, MA, 02021.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of
annual covered compensation. The Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide
actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on active current payroll. The
contributions of plan members and the Town are governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL.

Annual Pension Cost - The Town'’s contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and
2012 were $2,865,520, $2,749,247, and $2,619,736, which equaled its required contribution for each year.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information, following the notes to the basic
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Additionally, the schedule of
employer contributions, presented as required supplementary information, following the notes to the basic financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information for required and actual contributions relating to the cost-sharing plai
as a whole, of which the Town is one participating employer, as well as the Town’s proportionate share of the plan's
annual contributions. This information is designed to be helpful for understanding the scale of the information
presented relative to the Town.
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements...
Vehicles..
Machinery and equipment...

INfrastructure........ccoceeiiiiiiiiiire

Total capital assets being depreciated................

Buildings and improvements......................
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment..
Infrastructure...........ccooevveeeeiiiiniiiis

Total accumulated depreciation..............

Total capital assets being depreciated, net.......

Total governmental activities capital assets, net

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Beginning Ending
B Ir Decreases Balance
5858382 $ - S - 5,858,382
107,088,893 1.427,018 (386,986) 108,128,925
7,332,090 1,263,916 (362,208) 8,233,798
11,115,625 1,143,654 - 12,259,279
86,646,634 1,978,660 - 88,625,294
212,183,242 5,813,248 (749,184) 217,247,296
(31,125,727) (3,037,170) 386,986 (33,775,911)
(4,372,913) (879,102) 362,208 (4,889,807)
(9,036,207) (906,365) - (9,942,572)
(53,260,483) (2,396,163) - (55,656,646)
(97,795,330) (7,218,800) 749,194 (104,264,936)
114,387,912 (1,405,552) - 112,982,360
120,246,294 § (1.405,552) S - 118,840,742
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Business-type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

ital assets being depreciated:
Plant and infrastructure.
Other buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment..

Total capital assets being depreciated................

L mulat iation for:
Plant and infrastructure.
Other buildings and improvements.
Vehicles..........ccooeeieiennnns
Machinery and equipment.....

Total accumulated depreciation..............ccoevvuees
Total capital assets being depreciated, net.................

Total business-type activities capital assets, net..........

Beginning Ending
B Ir D Balance
350,850 $ - S - 8 350,850
26,464,464 610,513 - 27,074,977
6,374,393 - (35,323) 6,339,070
489,316 - (40,973) 448,343
510,212 - - 510,212
33,838,385 610,513 (76,296) 34,372,602
(16,389,572) (540,874) - (16,930,446)
(3.503,258) (137,320) 35,323 (3,605,255)
(405,711) (46,438) 40,973 (411,176)
(271,047) (33,066) - (304,113)
(20,569,588) (757,698) 76,296 (21,250,990)
13,268,797 (147,185) - 13,121,612
13619647 § (147,185) S - $ 13,472,462

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government.... 168,001
Public safety.. 404,539
Education...... 2,937,764
Public works.. 3,013,504
Human services... 30,082
Culture and recreation..............ccceeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 664,910
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities...................ccoeeiiiinnns $ 7,218,800
Business-Type Activities:
SBWE . ... et ettt ettt e e et e aa e ees $ 757,698

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

The Town has entered into a lease agreement for financing the acquisition of a fire truck. The lease agreement
qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The asset acquired through a capital lease is as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Asset:
Vehicles................... $ 748,083
Accumulated depreciation..............ccocoeiiiiiiiin. (74,808)
TOtAL e S 673,275

The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30,
2014, are as follows:

Years Governmental
Ending June 30 Activities
151,043
151,043
151,043
151,042
Total minimum lease payments................c.ceeeunns 604,171
Less: amounts representing interest.................... (24,959)
Present value of minimum lease payments........... $ 579,212

NOTE 8 — SHORT-TERM FINANCING
The Town is authorized to borrow on a temporary basis to fund the following:

« Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

« Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing through
issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

« Federal and state aided capital projects and other program expenditures prior to receiving reimbursement
through issuance of federal and state aid anticipation notes (FANS and SANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations of the Town and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the General Fund and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

The Town did not have any short-term debt activity during year 2014.
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

State law permits the Town, under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, to authorize indebtedness up to a
limit of 5% of its equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as
being "inside the debt limit." In addition, however, a Town may authorize debt in excess of that limit for specific
purposes. Such debt, when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt limit."

Details related to the Town's outstanding general obligation indebtedness at June 30, 2014, and the debt service

requirements follow.

Original Outstanding QOutstanding
Maturity Loan Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Through Amount Rate (%) 2013 Issued Red 2014

Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008.. 2023 § 3,830,000 350-400 $ 2105000 $ - § (33500008 1,770,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2009.. 2029 3,500,000 213-5.00 2,800,000 - (175,000) 2,625,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2010.. 2031 9,300,000 3.25-4.00 8,370,000 - (465,000) 7,905,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012.... 2023 19,095,000 2.00-4.00 18,995,000 - (2,300,000) 16,695,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013.. 2022 4,635,000 2.00-3.00 4,170,000 - (465,000) 3,705,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2014.. 2024 1,400,000 2.00-250 1,400,000 - 1,400,000
Total Future Debt Service ReQUINEMENTS..........oiuiiiiiiiiiiie it 36,440,000 1,400,000 (3,740,000) 34,100,000
Unamortized Premium on Bonds.............ooviiiniiniiiinieisieic i 779,166 - (77.917) 701,249
Total Governmental Bonds Payable... 37.219.166 1,400,000 (3.817.917) _34.801.249
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 1998 (MCWT)...... 2019 3,220,700 3.88 1,140,600 - (176,300) 964,300
MWRA Notes 2013, 2017 212,300 0.00 169,840 - (42,460) 127,380
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2014.. 2024 1,570,000  2.00-250 1,570,000 - 1,570,000
Total Enterprise Bonds Payable. ..............couiviiiiuiieeiiiiie e 1,310,440 1,570,000 (218,760) 2,661,680

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable................c.ooviiiimiiiniiininiinscec e

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for bonds payable in the general fund in future years are as
follows:

Year Principal Interest Total

3,555,000 $ 1,146,460 $ 4,701,460

3,470,000 1,058,665 4,528,665
3,445,000 954,643 4,399,643
3,280,000 832,652 4,112,652
3,225,000 720,241 3,945,241
3,210,000 590,491 3,800,491
3,190,000 472,441 3,662,441
3,150,000 370,311 3,520,311
2,665,000 274,031 2,939,031
780,000 191,138 971,138
640,000 164,713 804,713
640,000 140,276 780,276
640,000 115,618 755,618
640,000 89,582 729,582
640,000 63,456 703,456
465,000 37,200 502,200
465,000 18,600 483,600
Total.....eeeiee $ 34,100,000 $ 7,240,515 $_ 41,340,515

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for bonds payable in the sewer enterprise fund in future years
are as follows:
Year Principal Interest Total

384,060 $ 74,067 $ 458,127

389,560 61,142 450,702
395,260 48,904 444,164
358,500 32,639 391,139
359,300 24,096 383,396
155,000 15,888 170,888
155,000 12,788 167,788
155,000 9,688 164,688
155,000 6,588 161,588
155,000 3,488 158,488
Total........covenn. $ 2,661,680 $ 289,283 $__ 2,950,963

The Town has been approved to receive school construction assistance through the Massachusetts School
Building Authority (MSBA). The MSBA provides resources for eligible construction costs and debt interest and
borrowing costs. During year 2014, approximately $1,401,000 of such assistance was received. Approximately
$12,611,000 will be received in future years. Of this amount, approximately $1,405,000 represents
reimbursement of long-term interest costs, and approximately $11,207,000 represents reimbursement of
approved construction costs. Accordingly, a $11,207,000 intergovernmental receivable and corresponding
unavailable revenue has been recorded in the fund based financial statements and the change in the receivable
has been recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements.
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The Town is scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (MCWT) on a periodic basis for
principal in the amount of $248,407 and interest costs for $93,183. The principal subsidies are guaranteed and
therefore a $248,407 intergovernmental receivable has been recorded in the sewer enterprise fund at June 30,
2014. Net MCWT loan repayments, including interest, are scheduled to be $736,618. Since the Town is legally
obligated for the total amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial
statements. During year 2014 the principal subsidy totaled $47,943 and the interest subsidy totaled $32,115.

The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) which offers its members
interest free loans for various purposes. The Town has $127,380 in loans outstanding at year 2014. The imputed
interest on this loan is immaterial and has not been recognized by the Town.

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2014, the Town did not have any authorized and unissued debt

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, Retirements June 30, Current
2013 Additions and Other 2014 Portion
Governmental Activities:
Long-Term Bonds...........ccccvvveennnn. $ 36,440,000 $ 1,400,000 $  (3,740,000) $ 34,100,000 $ 3,555,000
Unamortized Premium on Bonds....... 779,166 - (77,917) 701,249 77,917
Other Postemployment Benefits........ 17,611,398 4,803,599 (2,346,088) 20,068,909 -
Capital Lease Obligations . - 748,083 (168,871) 579,212 144,385
Compensated Absences.................. 1,522,000 1,075,000 (1,005,000) 1,592,000 1,064,000
Total Governmental Activities........... 56,352,564 8,026,682 (7,337.876) 57,041,370 4,841,302
Business-Type Activities:
Long-Term Bonds............cceeevveennns 1,310,440 1,570,000 (218,760) 2,661,680 384,060
Other Postemployment Benefits........ 237,244 148,565 (158,406) 227,403 -
Compensated Absences.................. 16,000 17,000 (16,000) 17,000 17,000
Total Business-Type Activities.......... 1,563,684 1,735,565 (393,166) 2,906,083 401,060
Total.ooooiiii $ 57916248 S 9,762,247 $  (7.731,042) $ 59947453 § 5242362

Compensated absence liabilities and other postemployment benefit liabilities related to both governmental and
business-type activities are normally paid from the general fund and sewer enterprise funds, respectively.
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NOTE 10 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

The Town classifies fund balances according to the constraints imposed on the use of those resources. There
are two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendable.

GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund balance, which are nonspendable and spendable. Nonspendable
fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted to cash or they
are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items,
inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The Town has reported principal portions of
endowment funds as nonspendable.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balances, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

* Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.

« Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority.

* Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a
particular purpose.

* Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.

The Town's spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.

Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 §5B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund. Any changes to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund required a two-thirds vote of the legislative body. At year end the balance of the
General Stabilization fund is $2.7 miillion and is reported as unassigned fund balance within the General Fund.

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts 47 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2014

As of June 30, 2014, the governmental fund balance consisted of the following:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Nonmajor Total
University Governmental Governmental
General Station Funds Funds
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal............... S -8 -8 349,547 $ 349,547
Restricted for:
University station..............cccceeeenns - 741,360 - 741,360
Town grants and revolving funds..... - - 2,615,454 2,615,454
School lunch.... - - 89,485 89,485
Ambulance fund . - - 696,940 696,940
School grants and revolving funds. - - 3,747,953 3,747,953
Highway improvement fund............ - - 825 825
Expendable governmental trusts.. - - 80,132 80,132
Roadway improvements - - 56,006 56,006
School building renovations.. - - 23,349 23,349
Facility renovations.... - - 854,726 854,726
Cemetery........ - - 24,735 24,735
Other expendable trust funds.......... - - 75,454 75,454
Committed to:
General government... 4,767,890 - - 4,767,890
Public safety. 431,201 - - 431,201
Public works 232,638 - - 232,638
Assigned to:
General government... 66,817 - - 66,817
Public safety. 88,399 - - 88,399
Education 1,193,911 - - 1,193,911
Public works. 27,528 - - 27,528
Human services... 2,040 - - 2,040
Culture and recreation 5,881 - - 5,881
Employee benefits 1,028 - - 1,028
Unassigned 8,799,948 - - 8,799,948
TOTAL FUND BALANCES...........cveee $_ 15617281 § 741,360 $ 8,614,606 $ 24,973,247
== =

NOTE 11 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The amount of claim
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three years.

The Town provides health insurance to its employees through its participation in the West Suburban Health Group
(the Group), a non-profit trust comprised of eleven towns, one school district and two educational collaboratives.
The Group is self-sustaining through member premiums. The Town recognizes the cost of providing health
insurance by recording its share of insurance premiums paid to the Group in the General Fund in the year paid.
The purpose of the Group is to pay medical claims of its members’ employees and their covered dependents. In
the event the group is terminated, the Town is obligated to pay its prorata share of a deficit, should one exist.

The Town negotiated to require every employee to move to cost-saver plans offered by West Suburban Health

Group and to share the cost savings with the employees. The percentages paid by the Town and employees will
be adjusted each year in a manner that would allow any excess savings to the Town to be shared with the
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employees. To accomplish this, the health insurance split for 2014 was increased from 65/35 (Town/employee) to
a 66/34 percent split.

On July 1, 2015, the Town plans to join the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Group Insurance Commission
(GIC) which offers premium based insurance plans to GIC members. The GIC sets the rates for participating
municipalities annually. Municipalities participating in the GIC plans are assessed a .05% administrative fee on
their premium over what the State employees pay.

The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Interlocal Insurance Association (MIIA), a public entity risk pool
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for workers’ compensation benefits for
employees other than uniformed police and fire personnel. MIIA is self-sustaining through member premiums and
reinsures through commercial companies for stop loss insurance. The total premiums assessed by MIIA to the
Town during year 2014 totaled $202,000 and are recorded in the General Fund.

The Town is self-insured for the workers’ compensation claims of police officers and firefighters and are paid on a
pay-as-you-go basis from the General Fund. The estimated liability for workers’ compensation claims is based on
history and injury type. The Town'’s liability is not material at June 30, 2014, and therefore is not reported.

The Town is self-insured for unemployment compensation. During year 2014, the Town appropriated $112,000 to
provide for anticipated costs of unemployment benefits. During year 2014, claims related to unemployment
compensation totaled $39,000. The liability for unemployment compensation was not material at June 30, 2014,
and therefore is not reported.

NOTE 12 - STABILIZATION FUND

The Town has $2.7 million in a stabilization fund classified as part of the general fund in the governmental funds
financial statements. The stabilization fund may be used for general and/or capital purposes upon Town Meeting
approval. During year 2014, the stabilization fund earned investment income of approximately $4,900.

NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description — The Town of Westwood administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the
Retiree Health Plan”). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses
through the Town'’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are
negotiated between the Town and the unions representing Town employees and are renegotiated each
bargaining period. The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy — Contribution requirements are also negotiated between the Town and union representatives.
The required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. The Town contributes 60 percent
of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members and their spouses. Plan members receiving
benefits contribute the remaining 40 percent of their premium costs. For year 2014, the Town contributed
approximately $2.5 million to the plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The Town’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
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The components of the Town'’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the Town'’s net OPEB obligation are summarized in the following table:

Annual required contribution...............coooiiii. $ 4,737,069
Interest on net OPEB obligation...................cccoeeeeiiiini. 937,054
Amortization of net OPEB obligation.............................. (721,959)

Annual OPEB cost (EXPense)............cccovuvuiieiinneenens 4,952,164
Contributions made.............cceuuuiiiiiiiiiiiieee s (2,504,494)
Increase/(Decrease) in net OPEB obligation.................... 2,447,670
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year........................... 17,848,642
Net OPEB obligation-end of year.................cccccceeeeniiee. $ 20,296,312

The Town’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for years 2012, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

Percentage of

Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2014 $§ 4,952,164 51% $ 20,296,312
6/30/2013 5,240,423 36% 17,848,642
6/30/2012 4,966,914 35% 14,492,233

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
actuarial value of assets totaled $612,433, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits totaled $56,528,705 and
$55,916,272 was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$40,499,858, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 138%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, actuarial liabilities were determined using the projected unit credit cost
method. Plan membership includes 421 active members and 400 retirees, beneficiaries and dependents. The
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actuarial assumptions included a discount rate of 5.25%; a 7.75% asset rate of return assumption, which is based
on the expected yield on the assets of the Town, calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation
date; and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5% initially, graded to 5.0% inflation rate over 5 years; and a
6.0% increase per year in the part B premium trend rate. The 5.25% partially funded discount rate is based on
the blending of a funded discount rate of 7.75% and a pay-as-you-go discount rate of 4.00%. The UAAL is being
amortized over a 30 year open period using a level percentage of projected payroll with amortization payments
increasing at 4.0% per year. The asset valuation method used is market value. The remaining amortization
period at June 30, 2014 is 30 years.

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS

University Station Project

University Station, the Town's high profile commercial development project, significantly advanced in 2014. The
project is scheduled to include over two million square feet of new mixed use development including residential,
commercial, hotel, office, and retail components. The developer demolished all the existing structures and
completed the installation of all utilities and layouts of the new road systems. At year end, construction of
residential and retail units is well under way. Retail openings are scheduled to occur in the spring of 2015.
Advancement of this project will significantly enhance the Town’s tax base.

NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the Town grant programs have been
audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2014,
these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at
June 30, 2014, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at June 30, 2014.

NOTE 16 — IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
During year 2014, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:
* GASB Statement #65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Financial statement changes
include the presentation of deferred outflows and inflows in the Statement of Net Position and Balance
Sheet. Notes to the basic financial statements were changed to provide additional disclosure on deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.

* GASB Statement #70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The
implementation of this pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.
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The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in future years:

* The GASB issued Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, which is required to be
implemented in 2015.

* The GASB issued Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, which is required to
be implemented in 2015.

+ The GASB issued Statement #69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations,
which is required to be implemented in 2015.

e The GASB issued Statement #71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, which is required to be implemented simultaneously with GASB Statement #68 in
2015.

Management is currently assessing the impact that the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements.
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General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all the financial resources,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Ameunts To Next Year Budget
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds... 58848611 § 58848611 § 58923432 § - 74821
Motor vehicle excise (am 2,135,000 2,135,000 2,844 489 - 709.489
University Station - 4,400,000 4,400,000 - -
University Station permits. - 925,000 925,000 -
80,000 80,000 118,681 - 38,681
Fees and rentals. 222,000 222,000 341,562 - 119,562
Licenses and permits. 372,000 372,000 643,568 - 271,568
Fines and forfeitures. 10,000 10,000 18,587 - 8,587
il 6,527,532 6,688,976 6,691,199 - 2223
Departmental and other. 233,000 233.000 298,526 - 65,526
income. 40,000 40,000 25,929 - (14,071)
TOTAL REVENUES.. 68,468,143 73,954,587 75,230,972 - 1.276.386
EXPENDITURES:
SELECTMEN
Salaries. 421,009 431,262 431,210 - 52
E: it 47,668 47.668 45.321 653 1.694
TOTAL 468,677 478,930 476,531 653 1,746
FINANCE COMMISSION
39,308 56,889 56,878 - 1"
21,763 21.763 21,333 - 430
TOTAL 61,071 78.652 7821 - 441
ACCOUNTING
Salaries. 198,689 204,522 198,946 5,576
5,500 5.500 3.021 - 2479
204,189 210,022 201,967 - 8,055
AUDIT-SCHOOL & MUNICIPAL FINANCIALS
Professional Services.. 57,750 57.750 49,505 - 8,245
ASSESSORS
Salaries. 184,156 187.512 183,907 - 3.605
Expendit, 21,120 21,120 16.525 4.232 363
TOTAL 205,276 208,632 200432 4232 3,968
TREASURER
Salaries. 97,797 97,797 88714 - 9,083
E it 12,250 12.250 9.185 - 3.065
TOTAL 110,047 110,047 97,899 - 12,148
COLLECTOR
SBIANIBB...cccciiciniaiistissnssnssnnssasssssassnsssasssssssrsnes 107,349 109.272 109,260 - 12
E 74,900 74.900 73.310 - 1.590
TOTAL 182,249 184,172 182,570 - 1,602
91,113 93.465 93,464 - 1
103,500 103,500 95483 4151 3.866
194,613 196,965 188,947 4,151 3,867
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

9 Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Ameunts To Next Year Budget
PERSONNEL BOARD
Salaries. 165,693 168.720 168,530 - 190
E: i sosassase csens 8,400 8.400 5.990 - 2410
TOTAL assnsen 174,093 177.120 174,520 - 2600
INFORMATION SYSTEMS
Salaries. 251,701 257,583 258,541 - 1.042
i 262,785 262.785 261,182 1.402 201
TOTAL 514,486 520,368 517,723 1,402 1,243
TOWN CLERK
139,085 141,810 134,326 - 7.484
55,500 55.500 36.059 152 19.289
194,585 197.310 170,385 152 26,773
CONSERVATION COMMISSION
45,223 46,055 45110 - 945
7,862 7.862 161 5.184 1.067
53,085 53917 48,721 5,184 2012
PLANNING BOARD
Salaries. 107,264 108,449 97,772 - 10,677
E it 3,050 3.050 2011 - 1.039
TOTAL 110,314 111,499 99,783 - 11.716
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
SBIANIBB...cccccieiniaiississnssnssnnsssssssssassnsssassssssrsnns 26,961 27478 26,608 - 870
E: 1,887 1.867 556 - 1311
TOTAL 28,828 29,345 27164 - 218
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TASK FORCE
Salaries. 105,849 65,849 64113 - 1.736
2,000 42,000 1.805 40,000 195
TOTAL 107,849 107,849 65918 40,000 1,931
OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
EXPONGlUGS. ......oooovveiiriiinimnneninsiin s 40,000 40,000 28447 11,000 563
MASS HOUSING PARTNERSHIP/
HOUSING AUTHORITY
Salaries. 23,400 24,405 23,507 - 898
Expend 1,000 1.000 979 - 21
24,400 25,405 24,486 - 919
OFFICE COMMUNICATIONS
E it 130,000 130.000 129.745 43 212
TRAINING
E: i sosassase - 6,750 6.750 5.000 - 1.750
CHARTER COMMISSION
i 25,000 25.000 24,970 - 30
Total General 2,893,262 2,949.733 2,790.924 66.817 91,992
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

9 Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Ameunts To Next Year Budget
PUBLIC SAFETY _—
POLICE DEPARTMENT
Salaries.... 2,855,372 2,955,499 2,955426 - 73
222,685 222 685 222,374 - 3an
3,078,057 3178184 3,177,800 - 384
ANIMAL CONTROL
Salaries. 47,638 48,499 4847 - 28
E: 7.750 7.750 4403 - 3.347
TOTAL 55,388 56.249 52,874 - 3.3715
CROSSING GUARDS
Salaries. 107,064 107.064 106,341 - 723
Expenditures........ 4,900 4.900 2,366 - 2534
TOTAL ..o 111,964 111,964 108,707 - 3,257
FIRE DEPARTMENT
Salaries. 2,862,485 2,950,541 285421 88,399 7.931
Expend 186,075 186.075 185,198 - 877
TOTAL 3,048,561 3,136,616 3,039,409 88,399 8,808
BUILDING INSPECTION
Salaries. 269,904 274,933 288,878 - 6,055
E i 34,025 34.025 23414 - 10.611
)L+ 7 R—————" 303,929 308,958 292,292 - 16,666
CIVIL DEFENSE.......cccconncnnmnnsasssnssnssnonnasnssssssasssas 2,000 2.000 1.956 - 44
Total Public Safety. 6.599,899 6.793.971 6,673.038 88.399 32.534
EDUCATION
PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Salaries and expenditures. ... ..o, 37.205,300 37,352,158 36,152,531 1,193,911 5716
BLUE HILLS REGIONA 101,646 101.646 101.646 -
L L T T ——— 37,306,946 37,453.804 36,254 177 1,193.911 5716
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

9 Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Ameunts To Next Year Budget
PUBLIC WORKS _—
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
1,524,801 1,677,689 1,622,836 26,726 28127
E: i . . 477,970 477.970 471,656 24 6.290
TOTAL assnsen 2,002,771 2,155,659 2,094,492 26,750 a7
BUILDING MAINTENANCE
i 646,729 846.729 644,239 778 1712
MUNICIPAL & SCHOOL FIELD MAINTENANCE
= T 114,000 114,000 113,291 - 709
SNOW & ICE
EXPONIUISS ... 250,000 630,000 589,871 - 40129
STREET LIGHTING
E i 140,000 140.000 105.797 - 34.203
WASTE/COLLECTION/DISPOSAL
Expend 1,180,000 1,180,000 1,180,000 -
4.333,500 4.866.388 4,727 690 27.528 111170
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
HEALTH DIVISION
SBIANBB...ccccccciniaiiistisnssnssnnssasssssassnsssasssssssrsnes 209,687 215637 211,520 - 4117
E; sosassase csens 8,973 8.973 8254 - 719
TOTAL 218,660 224610 219774 - 4,836
OUTSIDE HEALTH AGENCIES. 13.418 13.416 12,226 - 1.190
DISABILITY COMMISSION
COUNCIL ON AGING
Salaries.............. 230,189 237515 235579 - 1,936
Expenditures. 25,285 25.285 18,056 247 6.982
TOTAL.. 255474 262.800 253635 247 8918
YOUTH COMMISSION
Salaries. 180,933 185,154 178673 - 6.481
E 15,441 15441 11,628 1.793 2.020
TOTAL 196,374 200,595 190,301 1.793 8,50
VETERANS SERVICES
Salaries. 28,349 28,815 25913 - 2,902
E: i sosassase - 88,800 88.800 62.067 - 26.733
TOTAL assnsen 117,149 117,615 87,980 - 29,635
Total Health and Human Services...............ccccoeeiiiiinn 801,573 819.536 763.916 2.040 53.580
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Ameunts To Next Year Budget
CULTURE AND RECREATION
RECREATION
267,235 272,153 269,864 - 2289
. 38,784 38.784 38.781 - 3
TOTAL 306,019 310,937 308 645 - 2292
PUBLIC LIBRARY
Salaries. 833,756 851,530 851177 - 353
i 231,546 231,546 222428 5856 3,262
Lost Books. 1,500 1.500 1,010 25 465
L L[, IR— 1,066,802 1,084,576 1,074,615 5.881 4,080
MEMORIAL DAY
[= LT L T — 10,675 10.675 8774 - 1.901
Total Culture and 1,383,496 1.406.188 1,392,034 5.881 8.273
PENSION BENEFITS
C y Pension. 2,865,520 2,865,520 2,885,520 . .
Non-C: 'y Pension, 33,000 33,000 32919 - 81
Total Pension Benefits. 2,898,520 2,898,520 2898439 - 81
INSURANCE
General Liability. 402,000 342.000 290.897 - 51.103
UNIVERSITY STATION.........coooiiimimmainieiiiieeneenaenas - 5.325.000 902,343 4,422 657 -
CAPITAL QUTLAY. 2,355,998 2,457.998 1.437.805 1.009.072 11121
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS. 6,963,368 6,963,368 6,574,999 1.028 387.341
FUND. 882,000 425.000 - - 425.000
STATE AND COUNTY TS 580,817 580817 574,743 - 6.074
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL........oooooviiiiiiiiniiiininns 3,890,000 3,890,000 3,740,000 - 150.000
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST . 1,236,338 1.236.338 1.236.197 - 141
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 72,527,717 78,408,661 70,257,202 6.817.333 1,334,126
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. (4.059,574) (4.454.074) 4.973.770 (6.817.333) 2610511
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 978,606 1,087,606 1,087,606 - -
Transfers out (100,000) (100.000) {100.000) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).. 878,606 987.606 987,606 - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,180,968) (3.486.468) 5,961,376 (6,817.333) 2,810,511
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, ing of year. 7,776,144 7.776.144 7,776,144 -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year. “$ 4595176 $ 4309676 S 13,737.520 S (8.817.333! s 2,610.511
= —_— —_— —_—
See notes 1o required supplementary information. (Concluded)
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Retirement System
Schedules of Funding Progress and
Employer Contributions

The Retirement System Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

The Retirement System Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multiyear trend information for required and

actual contributions relating to the cost-sharing plan as a whole, of which the Town is one participating employer,
as well as the Town's proportionate share of the plan's annual contributions.
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NORFOLK COUNTY CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) (8) (B-A) (A/B) ©) ((B-A)C)

01/01/12 $ 608,235,096 $ 1,128,960,288 $ 520,725,192 53.9% $ 229,095,409 227.3%
01/01/10 600,790,835 1,001,881,055 401,090,220 60.0% 223,332,595 179.6%

01/01/08 596,157,147 907,719,124 311,561,977 65.7% 223,814,977 139.2%
01/01/07 533,077,948 855,677,413 322,599,465 62.3% 219,620,865 146.9%
01/01/05 467,186,566 762,900,650 295,714,084 61.2% 196,639,163 150.4%
01/01/03 415,150,776 675,275,257 260,124,481 61.5% 185,281,985 140.4%
01/01/00 371,646,793 533,959,970 162,313,177 69.6% 163,542,978 99.2%
01/01/97 258,771,070 392,463,080 133,692,010 65.9% 126,219,194 105.9%
01/01/93 151,546,609 291,472,940 139,926,331 52.0% 107,482,975 130.2%

The Town's share of the UAAL, as of January 1, 2012, is approximately 6.44%.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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NORFOLK COUNTY CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

System Wide Town of Westwood
(B/A)
Plan Year Annual (A) (B) Town's Percentage
Ended Required Actual Percentage Actual of System Wide
December 31 Contributions Contributions Contributed Contributions  Actual Contributions
2013 $ 44,800,000 $ 44,800,000 100% $ 2,865,520 6.40%
2012 42,714,639 42,714,639 100% 2,749,247 6.44%
2011 41,206,587 41,206,587 100% 2,619,736 6.36%
2010 39,749,857 39,749,857 100% 2,417,220 6.08%
2009 38,920,499 38,920,499 100% 2,329,423 5.99%
2008 33,104,903 33,104,903 100% 2,135,190 6.45%
2007 32,877,890 32,877,890 100% 1,852,100 5.63%
2006 31,755,708 31,755,708 100% 1,810,830 5.70%
2005 28,238,996 28,238,996 100% 1,690,774 5.63%

The Town's Actual Contributions equaled 100% of its Required Contributions for each year presented.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Schedules

1 i I
The Schedule of Funding progress compares, over time, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits with the
actuarial value of accumulated plan assets.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions compares, overtime, the Annual Required Contributions to the Actual
Contributions made.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Projected Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) ©) ((B-A)C)
6/30/2013 § 612,433 § 56,628,705 § 55,916,272 1% S 40,499,858 138.1%
6/30/2011 - 59,054,291 59,054,291 0% 37,620,046 157.0%
6/30/2009 - 49,334,499 49,334,499 0% 39,100,816 126.2%
7/1/2006 - 53,091,156 53,091,156 0% 29,437,171 180.4%
Schedule of E ,.' Y Contributi
Annual Actual
Year Required Contributions Percentage
Ended Contribution Made Contributed
2014 $ 4,737,069 $ 2,504,494 53%
2013 5,143,808 1,884,014 37%
2012 4,891,733 1,751,826 36%
2011 4,502,956 1,156,674 26%
2010 4,260,901 1,078,212 25%

See notes to required supplementary information.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial Methods:

June 30, 2013
Projected credit unit

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method 30 year level percent of pay assuming a 4.0% annual increase, open.
Remaining amortization period.. 30 years as of June 30, 2014

Asset valuation method Market Value

Actuarial Assumptions:

7.75%
5.25%
7.5%, graded to 5.0% over 5 years.

Investment rate of retumn..
Discountrate..............
Healthcare cost trend rate.

Part B premiun trend rate.... 6.00%
Plan Membership:

Current retirees, beneficiaries, and dependents..... 400

Current active members.. 421

TOMAL .o 821

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

1. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the Town to adopt a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The Town Meeting, which has
full authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
majority Special Town Meeting approval via a special article.

The majority of the Town'’s appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior year
be carried forward and made available for spending in the current year. These carry forwards are included as
part of the subsequent year's original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized
for an appropriation account. However, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, regardless of whether
such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments
may exceed the level of spending authorized by two-thirds majority vote of Town Meeting.

The Town adopts an annual budget for the General Fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original year 2014 approved budget for the General Fund authorized approximately $70 million in appropriations
and other amounts to be raised and $2.3 million in encumbrances and appropriations carried over from previous
years. During year 2014, the Town increased the original budget by $5.9 million, which was primarily due to the
appropriation of $5.3 million in mitigation and permit funds received from the University Station project which are
appropriated for project mitigation costs and unspent appropriations have been reserved in the general fund for
capital outlay.

The Town Accountant's office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary
control is exercised through the Town's accounting system.

2. Budgetary - GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth)) is followed, which differs from the GAAP
basis of accounting. A reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the General Fund for the year
ended June 30, 2014, is presented below:
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis....................ccceee. $ 5961376

Perspective difference:
Activity of the stabilization fund recorded in the

general fund for GAAP.........ccc..c...... 104,878
Basis of accounting differences:
Net change in recording 60-day receipts accrual...................... (5,303)
Net change in expenditure accruals..............ccccccociveeieieinnenns (15,349)
Recognition of revenue for on-behalf payments....................... 6,458,161
Recognition of expenditures for on-behalf payments................ (6,458,161)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis.............cccceevviiniinnnns $ 6,045,602

NOTE B - PENSION PLAN

The Town contributes to the Norfolk County Contributory Retirement System ("Retirement System”), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan ("Plan") administered by the Norfolk County Retirement
Board. The Retirement System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members and beneficiaries.
Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the Plan. Plan members
are required to contribute to the Retirement System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of annual covered
compensation. The Town is required to pay into the Retirement System its share of the system-wide actuarially
determined contribution which is apportioned among the employers based on active covered payroll.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Additionally, the schedule of employer contributions, presented as required
supplementary information, presents multiyear trend information for required and actual contributions relating to
the cost-sharing plan as a whole, of which the Town is one participating employer, as well as the Town'’s
proportionate share of the plan's annual contributions. This information is designed to be helpful for
understanding the scale of the information presented relative to the Town.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2014

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the Retirement System’s most recent actuarial
valuation:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation Date.............cccceevvnnnnen. January 1, 2012
Actuarial Cost Method . Entry Age Normal Cost Method

Amortization Method.......... . Increasing at 4.5% per year, level dollar for ERI liability for certain units
Remaining Amortization Period...... 28 years remaining as of January 1, 2012
Asset Valuation Method................ The actuarial value of assets is determined using five-year

smoothing of asset returns greater than or less than the
assumed rate of return, with a 20% corridor.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return............. 8.25%
Projected salary increases. ..4.00%
Cost of living adjustments............ 3.00% of the lesser of the pension amount and $12,000 per year
Plan Membership:
Retired participants and beneficiaries receiving benefits............. 2,613
2,154
328
5,008
TOtAL. e 10,103

NOTE C - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the Retiree Health Plan"). The plan
provides lifetime healthcare for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Town's health insurance plan,
which covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The Town currently finances its other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on a pay-as-you-go basis. As a result,
the funded ratio (actual value of assets expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability) is 0%. In
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, the Town has recorded its OPEB cost equal to the
actuarial determined annual required contribution (ARC) which includes the normal cost of providing benefits for
the year and a component for the amortization of the total unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the plan.

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information which compares, over time, the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits with the actuarial value of accumulated plan assets.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multi-year trend information for required and actual
contributions relating to the plan.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and included the types
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit cost between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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Other Supplementary
Information
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Combining and Individual Fund Statements
and Schedules

The combining financial statements provide a more detailed view of the “Basic Financial Statements” presented in
the preceding subsection.

Combining statements are presented when there are more than one fund of a given fund type.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than permanent
funds or major capital project funds) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specific
purposes. The Town's special revenue funds are grouped into the following categories:

e School Lunch Fund - accounts for the operations of the public school lunch program.

* Ambulance Fund - accounts for the fees collected for ambulance services which can legally only be
appropriated for costs to provide the service, such as Emergency Medical Technician firefighter stipend
and ambulance supplies.

* Departmental Grants/Other Revolving Funds — accounts for various grants and legally restricted
revenues for special programs administered by Town departments.

e Educational Grants Funds — accounts for all educational programs specially financed by grants and
other restricted revenues.

* Educational Revolving Funds — accounts for educational programs financed by non-grant revenues and
gifts.

« Expendable Governmental Trusts — accounts for contributions where both principal and investment
eamings may be spent to support the government.

* Highway Improvement Fund — accounts for funds received from the State Highway Department which is
used for construction, reconstruction and improvements of roadways.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of major capital assets (other than those financed by enterprise funds). Such resources are derived
principally from proceeds of general obligation bonds and grants. The Town'’s grouping for non-major capital
project funds is as described as follows:

* Roadway Improvements — accounts for construction, reconstruction and improvements of roadways,
streets and sidewalks. Funding is provided primarily by bond proceeds, various grants and legally
restricted revenues for special programs administered by Town departments.

« School Building Renovations — accounts for renovation, improvements and capital equipment
associated with public school buildings.

* Facilities Renovations — accounts for renovation, improvements and capital equipment associated with
town buildings and facilities.
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Permanent Funds

Permanent Funds are used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government's programs.

* Cemetery Fund — accounts for contributions associated with cemetery care and maintenance.

« Other Nonexpendable Trust Funds - accounts for various contributions associated with the public
library, schools and veterans services.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30. 2014
Special Revenue Funds
Departmental Expendable
School Grants/ Highway
Lunch Ambulance Other Revolving Grants Revolving Trusts Improvement Sub-total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents. 91805 § 696,940 § 2655430 § 828,006 $ 302369 $ 80,132 § 825 § 7376834
Investments............. . . - - - . . . .
Recevables, net of uncollectibles.

Departmental and other....................... - 119,188 - - - - - 119,188

Intergovernmental.......... : : - - - : 1,221,781 1.221.781
TOTAL ASSETS......ocmmmmimimmmninsmninninnniins $ 91805 § 816.128 § 2655430 § 828006 $ 3023696 S 80132 § 1222606 S 8.717.803
UABILITIES

Warrants payable........... 3 2320 § -s 39976 $ 8034 $ 86875 § -s -s 137,205

Accrued payroll - - - - 8.840 - - 8,840
TOTAL LABILITIES........coooniminaniianniniiiann 2320 - 39.976 8034 95715 - - 146,045

INFLOWS OF

Unavalable revenues. ..............ccooeiaennn . 119.188 - - . 1,221,781 1.340.969
FUND BALANCES

NONEPONEADIO. ... - .. oo . . . . . . . .

Restricted. 89.485 696.940 2615454 819.972 2.927.981 80.132 825 7.230.789
TOTAL FUND BALANCES........oooniiiiminns 89.485 696.940 2615454 819.972 2,927.981 £0.132 825 7.230.789

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES... § 91805 § 816.128 § 2655430

Town of Westv d, Ma husetts 74
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(Continued)
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Capital Projects Funds Permanent Funds
Total
Other Nonmajor
Roadvwary School Buikling Facilies Nonexpendable Gavernmental
Imperovements Renovations Renovatons Sub-total Cemetery Trust Funds Sub-total Funcs
$ 355291 § 87649 § 850,246 § 1,303,186 $ 374282 § 55773 § 430,085 $ 9,110075
. . - - - 19,681 19,681 19681
. - - - - - - 119,188
- - - - - - - 1.221.781
S 356201 87549 § 860246 § 1303186 S 374282 § 75454 S 449,736 S 10.470.725
s 299,285 § 64300 § 5520 § 369,105 § -8 -5 -5 506.310
. - . - - - - 8840
299,285 54,300 5,520 369,108 - - = 515.150
- - - - - 1.340.969
. - . . 349,547 - 349,547 349547
56.006 23.349 854,726 934,081 24,735 75454 100.189 8,265.059
56,006 23349 854,726 934,081 374,282 75454 449,738 8,614,608
$ 355291 § 87649 § 850,245 $ 1,303,186 $ 374282 § 75454 S 449,735 S 10,470.725
(Concluded)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
OF 3 IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENOED une 3,201

Special Revenue Funds
Departmantal Expendable
Sehool Geants/ Highway
Lunch Ambulance Other m Grants. Revohing Trusts Sud-total
BEVENUES:
Charges for FSURTS———— 956,301 § 567537 § 787972 - $ 2463005 S -3 - 8§ 4TS
Intergovemmaontal ” o - — 140,884 - 362.830 23171475 - - - 2,820,889
Contributions. . S— . . - - 131512 - 106,285 - - 231097
- . - - - 152 - 152
TOTAL REVENUES ... - - o— 1.097.185 567 537 1,665,137 2317175 2,569,200 152 - 8216476
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
. . 345,122 - - - . 345,122
- - 193,347 - - 24929 - 218276
1,089,828 - - 228961 2985846 - - 6,365,285
- - 169.728 - - - 121825 291,563
. - 48,586 - - - - 48585
- - 742,540 - - - - 742,840
TOTAL 1,089,828 - 1,499,323 2289611 2,985.848 24929 121,825 8,011,362
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER; 7.357 567,537 165814 27,564 {416.556) (24.777) (121,825) 205,114
Transfors out - __(esss0n) (130.128) . . . . _ esem
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)... - (665.500) (130.128) - - - - {795.628)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.. ... — 7357 (97.963) 35686 27564 (416,556) (24.777) (121,825) (590,514)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR............... 82,128 794 903 2579768 792,408 3,344 537 104,909 122,65 7,821,303
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR. . - - s 89485 § 696,940 § 2615454 § 819972 § 2027081 § 80,132 § 825 § 7,230,789
{(Continued)
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Capital Projects Funds. Permanent Funds
Total
Other Normajor
Roacdway School Bulding Facilbes Nonexpendadie Governmantal
_improvements __ Renovations Renovations. Sub-total Cemetery Trust Funds Subtctal Funds
s -8 -5 -5 - s -8 -3 -8 4774815
- - 425374 425374 - - - 3,246,263
- - 531,000 531,000 13325 - 13,325 782122
- - - - 36 3970 4,006 4158
- - 956,374 956,374 13.361 3970 17,331 9,190,181
- - - - - - - 15,122
. . . . - - . 218276
- 12343 - 12343 - - - 6,377,628
1.857.734 - 358673 2216407 - - - 2,507,960
- - - - - - - 4859
- - 716,280 716,280 - 116,321 116,321 1575141
1.857.734 12343 1.074.953 2945030 - 116,321 116,321 11.072.713

{1.857.734) {12.343) (118.579) (1,988 .656) 13.361 (112.351) (98,990) 1,882,532)

900,000 . 500,000 1,400,000 . . - 1,400,000

. . . . (1.000) - (1,000) (796,628)

900.000 - 500,000 1.400.000 (1.000) - (1.000) 603,372

(957.734) (12.343) 381.421 (588,656) 12.361 (112.351) (99.990) (1279,160)

1013740 35602 473305 1,522,737 361.921 187,805 549,726 9,893,766

s 56006 S 23349 S 854726 S 934081 § 374282 S 75454 S 449738 § 8,614,606
(Concluded)
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Agency Fund

The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity. The Town's agency fund
consists primarily of student activities and planning deposits.
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AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..............cccevviviiiiiiniiiiinnn. S 694,070 $ 1,115,380 (1,065,239) $ 744,211
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Departmental and Other...........coooivviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieniiians 80,233 672,982 (664,213) 89,002
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt S 774303 § 1,788,362 $ (1,729452) § 833,213
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable..................... $ 1,015 § 25 § (1,015) § 25
Liabilities due depositors - Student Activities.................. 201,350 416,813 (396,623) 221,540
Liabilities due depositors - Planning Deposits................. 571,938 1,371,524 (1,331,814) 611,648
TOTAL LIABILITIES......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccciienans $ 774,303 $ 1,788,362 $ (1,729.452) $ 833,213
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Statistical Section

Ten Year History of the Following
Major Categories:

Expenditures

Revenues

Property Tax Collections
Debt

Town Demographics and Economic Information

General Information

Wesmood Town Hall
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Statistical Section

This part of the Town of Westwood comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the Town's overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Town'’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Town’s most significant local revenue source,
the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town's current levels of
outstanding debt and the Town’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the Town's financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
Town'’s financial report relates to the services the Town provides and the activities it performs.

SOURCES: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts 81 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

uoday je)

141 Vv 9A! Uy tod 28 Spesnyoessel ‘PooMISaM JO UMO

—_— e — e

S 9YZ'GZS'vLL S 696'9EZ'8LL § 6LZ0LL'0ZL § BSLL60GLL S 9YG'99SZZL S BSETEZ'OZL S 2ZEYLGG'EZI S 9S8'L/BEZL § E£G9VEE0ZL § uoRISOd Jou JuoWwWoACE Arewud 1010y
¥8Z'025'L 906'9¥6'E vIEBIOY 988'G50'9 685'622'9 LBFOLE'R £41°690°Z1 L60'PPL6 SrL'80Z'0L 220°Z£0°0L )
ZLL's59°L S5P°008' L £€Z'8.8°L 1S8'SEL'L £€0'2LL'2 9.E'165'Z vz'zzv'e orr'o9v'z VZE'VI6'L 26¥°0¥0'2
£95'88€'201 S88°LLL'801 ZZY'BEL LY 28¥'8LETLL 9€1L'PE9'0LL €L9'v99°LLL vIBOVLLLL LOL'E9L LLE 48€'669°LLL 620'292'801 T 51955€ [€)1deD U) PaIsaAu]

Auawnob Lewudg
99¥'09L'SL S 882°18€'9L S LOV'OLE'9L $ ZvB'9ZTLL $ POB'6BLLZL S SLL'66ZLL S BLL'GEELL S YSL'6ES9L  § SSEEYPOL  $ 0£ZUSK9L UM uopysod 18u seAnoe edii-sseursnq €10
Vereeet | 070V | WLWNV | Sy | OTET | SI90T | GSSTIST | IS0T | BTIE | TOEGEIE | s P —
Z289°9LL'VL 202°60€°21L €29°'1LETL 901°866'ZL P9'8LEEL 095'8.9°CL 282°12S'EL 9Z8'ILYEL Z9E'162EL 62 LEO'EL TTTIIIQep Pejelas O 18U ‘slesse [8)1ded u) peiseAu|
sonanoe adA-sseursng
—— — — e — — s, s m—
€6¥'€08°001 S BSGEYL'B6 S S9S90EL0L § LIZEFE'ZOL § PELLOG'LOL S LLEZOZ'SOL S 08L°/Z68'80L S 8.8°LZ¥LO0N S 86Y'GZYLOL S €ZVLLIPOL S UORISOd 18U SBRIANDE (BIUBWLIBACE |ej0)
005'98S'€ szrset) 9£5°09 050°228'% 69Z'v5E'2 288'689'% 412'552'8 £€91°929°9 6v1°950°2 9229069 T )
ZL'SS9'L S5P'008' L £€Z'848°L 1S8'SEL'L £€0'ZLL'Z 9LE'LES'Z Lz'zzv'e orr'o9v'z YZE'PI6'L L69°0¥0'Z )
188°L19'66 S 8/9°Z9v'96 S 66LL9€'66 $ 9/E'08E'66 $ Z6Y'SLEL6 S ELL'9B6'L6 S ZE9'6LZ'B6 S S.Z'L6Z'86  $ SZO'B0P'E6  $ 0S9'082'66  § e $1955€ |€11CED Ul PaISIAU|
SSONIANDE [RIUDWUIINOD
vz €10z cz Loz oLoz 6002 8002 2002 9002 $00Z
EN

SJEOA UO] ISET
jusuodwo) Ag uonisod N

SNISNYORSSEWY ‘POOMISIM JO UMOL



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

poday eroueul [enuuy aAjsuayaidwo) €8

TR Gty R o T T R T e vy R T - T T

Twem  Toes  Toseso  ebee  (hzeos)  Toowe  woeees ﬂﬂl nﬁlﬂl e sz aci-seaunng
S0S60T £ (009D 5 BOL9EU'L) s eYaN0l 8 (uSCor) s (60E20T) s zoceoyt s 0ZS 8 wWEeT S
wofisod 19N Ul $BUeYD
e I = = Ty T s T N A T T oweod Ut SO0
g0 pse
Twen  TWwos | Twoso  Temwoss  Temosd - . Sy
S0GA300 d)-S5ourng
TYI0E BRI E 7 kR Ty R O TY WS ETa soanme
RO BIEORZ IEORE CLH0RE S0 3 - - - sjsueL
- - - - B 15569 15869 g9 o
. 000052 83: . . : . : . sosse
62652 E8SY r'i6 w weoez 006549 92204 0E0'989 bt SUIOUN LBULSALA DA ASAIIN
"oz 26619 Y aZim e e 19796 200506 15768 R0 O swmbadsgoon
O PRIUASAS 12U SUOANGLILOD PUB SHEID)
ieg8LL 597081 wore wvez 20950 fiaded frrde 6229 51095 £5%08 ]
ez 6501857 SEOBOFZ  WZZSIZ 12 YrEEsz s 6071052 P
WOOE  § DL\GELS 8 ZNGMES 8 ZLOGKES 8 LTS 8 MEIOCer 8 BGNCW 8 OSN3 vl 8 IvosEr U RARS PN X J0 W
'S0 ASd0Id RUOSOE PUR SISO RO
. U EPISURIND
TG00 s Tozsteav) s Torooved) s Tezs06u5s) s (So02095) 8 (RZicou sl s @ oc00s) 8 (GO00GG LY  § (o9 L0G6T)  § (GUS06CEN  § " onuandy
HRSS0N S ST S rSed) S (weiss) s 009 8 (29I S (GTIOR) S GooLuY S MeZRSTON S (meesey s sequpe
onusay wesboidrosuadna) 1N

R

(L9'25e'00)

TEOWEE ¢ GOGILVEC ¢ GIELIC ¢ CSOCIGSL ¢ GIBVEITE ¢ COCLOBIL 8 SUCORLIZ % CIOMEZ ¢ GLLVUEL % WReeD ¢
mT

WSy

WHeT | Wewet | et Weawt | owesat | Wiemv . oWt TOWIT | st

i = =
X3 L BE9'4E 56y - el L9102 o SN o'
LT BRZ'SST \Zuss LZ0'968T wosLE WS sy STLRUT TYTRIT auTe'e

TOTEIEE ¢ SLCCoNT6 8 D00GLYSs 8 GBI 0SIZs 8 GCILie 8 [KTLre % VOOLGIL 8 V06IC00L 8 SIiaLse 8 DRIeied  §

TEwTy Tt mwemy | GGeeat o0t Gleilt | teemZe | ledmet | omeave | WBolE

oyt OB RERZIE  ve0ereL W PISTER IR0V W SIWCE e
LT [T ﬂ‘w.l TEreRT | e | ow0elt | [oeowen | sz | [oroee
IS9PET VI Z ,in L weurz 35 2 awwre | |recuce 8 § vt | ewns
16T id_N.— cﬂu 0L aﬂs g’ TNu9 2NI6OL
0L - - -
6ov' 2898 101558 520002 L oz wsrs Wz R0 %0082 wiss 2800089 uLIL
PRER0RS | LS HOUYYS 025'68Y'25 ESN.NG | §Nﬂ | seLzever | 2s6'225" vy SE9'9EY0r GRTY6L'LE
------ BIESEL'S 010586 6206968 6240608 88 BE0ISEL WSt 6899 ousesse
ugizsy (8] e6Zisi9  %isedsmis |8 osoour |8 eswemy (8] .a‘i (% zozee 8wy 4 eE0s0Y 8 Tiouee 8
= o) ] _ 2 &) o [ 3 i [—"

ISoM 0 umoy



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

poday jeloueuld [enuuy aAlsuayaiduiod

8 sjesnyoesseyy ‘PoOMISap JO UMO |

"1BUL0) $5 BSVO-0:d By} Lt PaLIOdB) UBEQ BARY | |0Z Jeak 18IS O} Joud SBOUB(EQ PUN) ‘| |OZ [BISY Ul #5 ASYD PAILWBKILA UMDY BU|

996'GSE'6 M AAT $ 805'SZL°2L $ ¥2ZSI8lL $78510528  § 9699002 § 99rS8S8 § VGECIZS $ L90IE99 § 68Z8BLEP  $ SPUN) [EIUSWUIAACE JBYIO |8 [B10L
61¥'900'6 0L1'988°6 viv'6e8’LL PLL'69L'LL N - - - - - papuIsay
LYS'6vE ¥£0'95¢€ yE0'ove 0s0'9te - - - - - - a|qepuadsuoN
- - - - 026002 ¥rs'olz vi8'VIZ +01'S0Z S9L'v0L 055'96 pun; jusuewsad
- - 212'9S¢E"L £90'9€S'Y £29'199'L (188'989) 805'9€L (801289) puny sjoafosd |eyded
- - 2.0'£98'9 §6L'SY6'9 699'80t'9 195'20v'S SZL'ELS'S 696'CLL'S anuanal [erads
JNEEEYT)
- $ - $ - $ - $ 6ve'see $ viZvie $ 862°00¢ $ 011262 $ £99'9.2 $ 8.8'v9C “'pensesay
SPUNJ [BIUBWIWIBA0D JOYIO IV
T v g U TR PT U YN vl S TV S <y T T S T Y
182°L19°GL $ 6.9'L.S6 $ 65CI¥28 $ 1Zre9L9 $ ISPE0Zy S [SL06EY S £0868LY § Lvv6LLE S S89'9S9'E § €50GOLE  $
BY6'66L'8 LLL8vZ'L 22Z'055'S 085895y 0L9L¥ET 9Z6'6£6'2 SSLsPL'E 88G'€8€°C 09P'LLL'E SL6'SYB'Z |
$09'S8¢€"1 $05'S80°L 998'2/LL ZIP'0SE'L 182'658'L LEB'0SY'L BP9 LP0'L 668'S62 G22'srs 8L0'6L6
6ZLIEY'S $ vOv'LEZL S LL'8IS'L $ 6058 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 4 o]
pung [es6ue9
102 €102 zioe 10z 0102 6002 2002 1002 9002 5002
siea) uay Isen

SpuUNJ [BJUBWILIAACY ‘SPOURIEG PUNY

S}OSNYORSSE ‘POOMISB JO UMO]



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

poday eioueul4 [enuuy aAIsusyaldwo) s8 s

%8S %rZ9 wore %L6L %sz'e w8 KHHE'S *0Z'6 %9001 %RILLE o €58 8IA0S 190g
VOT6SES  S(Z88208) S 08RZOVF)  § GEOIEG VL  § PBLEWWE)  § CZLZZ9E  $ OEGZEY  S(GOVGER L) S WOWPELT  §(0GPOOZE) | § oo UBRQ PUn) Ul SBURD 19N
190°6EY 2 BL6'SITS 966 5vY EPEB08°6 816'062 £20'065'€ 000'¥SEE 229584 - S (s9sn) 592008 BuoUEL JOYIO [I0)

(eza'96) (evz'cos) z8vezs) (zor66¢) (ie9z0es) (6se'aza) Tlizz'ses) Grzo'cen @61 E¥E) Toav'ezss) N0 §39)5U8J 1L
909°280°4 12Z'v52L sorrie OPL'06L 609'265'L 658'0.9 122'585 LOEEY BBL'EYS 08L'E25'L U1 ssgjsue) L
£80'8¥L - . - - - 00042 229'681 - ®  eemaaimaseesRmsisimsseseesRmasRensmnes Buoueuy eses| [epden
. 000'062 00005 . . . N N . - 1sse IGe Jo afes

- 266041 SeE'L1Z - £20'06 - - - - 5pLOq JO Wy

(ri'see'iz) “sjale Mosose puoq 32.2 o sweuled

SEVPLTT *8pUOQ BUIPUNB) JO BOUEBNSS] WOY WNIWeIG
. . 000'660'64 . . . . . . - s Buipunjas 1GOP 10 Souenss|
000°'00¥'4 000'SES'Y - 000'00E'6. - 000'005'€ 000'0£8°E - - - 1399 JO BouUeNSS|
(sesn) saan0g Bupueuld JeO
£0e'02L' T098818°S) [T 0692212 Zarvere) 6602¢ 0£6'825 2z0'1802) YOVvELL Tosyoozg) e SAUMIPUOEXD (JOPUN) J0M0 SINUIADS JO 59043
¥ZV'965°68 192'619'68 WZS51L8 €96'VET 6L SET'969°6L 06Z'6¥2°6L 0r9'80€°LL £22€90'LL ££8'820'89 9LL'OEL'69 ®oy
61 96T ¥ e Zeet 196 969 L B6S 609 1 yE08LLL o8 0ie L 010656 ¢ 0SE 886 | BIZOPI T BLLLOET isasau
00008’ 000'0%L'E 000018 000062y 000'562' 000515 000591y 000594y 000’594’y 000Gy edouud
2601095 1980
BrZEIB'S £18'20v'8 00Z'061'0L 6Y0'L01°S 259'¢60'9 PSR 9EL'026'C SYZEOL'y Lot'Lze's 02£'569'8 Aeno [epded
EvLS YOvY'0LS S6LIES 686655 $E€2'965 082128 QIE'PIS PEO'R0S £66'96% 1E1'06Y YHMN R 3RS
6668'v259 260'S5¥'9 215929’ 85€'919°G 8ZY'ESH'S 02s'e2e’s eee'saL'y 1E0'6YE'Y 082'796°¢ 828'8IL'E S)jeuaq sakodw3
169062 §52'526 608'162 122z B1€'92 fr'LIE £50'14€ $5256¢ 962'%2¢ PIRREL ey aoueinsus ey pue Kuodosg
0099586 18E'P0L'6 £00'80L'8 9UY'S90'8 180255, £20'v62'L 88Y'50L'9 16'129'9 064'280'9 025285 G euq uotsud
6680222 990'286'L SI9'0E6'L VEE'LEE'L 10£'696' SZV'6L02 crLL60'T 900°209't ¥18'922'} 206'9ZY'L UONes 0V pue NEnd
190218 20Z'0v8 195°18 86E'¥SL Z16's8L 2L1'589 £95°LL9 €16'6L9 BL5'2YS £€90'165 882{AJBS UBWNH
652156} ZER'0LE'L yT6s 862064 £55'85F BSH'8262 FEE'BEY' Y r9BSL'T £0L'CLS - voges Apssonun
SE6'OI8'Y 295'LS'y PivL08'E QLLVOEV'Y $68'8LL'Y SLL2L9E PEG9E'Y 828652 662001y 2Ly T oM MGnd
SEV'ESEIY BYZ'LVE LY 908'526'8C 686'219'28 9L LILLE 5E6'v89'9 £2L'NIVE ¥51'621'2€ HZ06Z'IE VET'LE9'6C uoneanp3
219 2£0'695'9 26E°9L1'9 £68'€92°9 216'026'S 626'251'9 26£'920'9 $90'%98'S 8052655 6IL'BIES Aajes agng
BES'POL'E £E5'996'2 L6Z'0E'E ¥8S'98L'Z 251'0292 990'06¢'€ 02€'059'2 061EEL'T 6188612 0zy'sze’z L ol
‘saunppuadx3
RIowE . lovowes | eewia | ST Cessl | Geel | OGIWI | i Leels | 0Reme snusnay oy
S96'vE 6Z'ES WLBL 19£'66 oLzl 9EBIE 815'88L SLLSL8 WELEL SL8'Z9Y prTrnn__——_—___——_——_—_——_=_ws= e WIS
zvzeL £9z'Uz 818'v22 LpL'95Z 191662 15912 L0V'2ET 120'602 sLv'suz z10'e61 el
BESLEYL 199'109'L - L8901 288'v2r 116'805'2 LE0°ESE'E 0€ZriZZ 000'569 - uopers Kyssoaun - Jogo pue a
BYE'L89 189246 265'868 6L2'089 101225 £05'296 008°0EL"4 6L£'686 oLv'vey Y225 Jopo pue q
£29'S6E°9L LEL'008'SH ¥80'99L' L) erLevy'eL £10'LL8°6) LLV'E99'SH £62'920°64 828'70Z'v) 6L1'696'84 6ZL'E00'LL
285°81L ov6'0L 296724 ozL'sk 12524 296'94 289k 020°0Z ££2'02 SES'64 Pue SouLy
895°CY9 611'859 9EHO5Y 996'SLy SO¥'Eor s25'8LE zz8eLy SYE'REY 08L'€95 ¥Z6'88Y T ged U S9SUeN]
295 £€5'80¢ 892128 568'LL2 0EV'EET 868'152 960622 18904 SIE'65H LLE'GEL ‘S[BjUA) pUe $00
189811 S9v'08 260'792 o8Y'ZZL 209's04 6v6'96 0L6'96 6£Z'L9 Sp0'sS £58'08 J soqeudd
000'526 - - - - 620'118 - - - - . ‘siwwad vosers Arssanun
000°00¥ - - - - - - - - - . “spuny uoneBanu uogers Ayssanun
N - - - 000'S19 000'052' - - - - ) wowded xe; pasjueIens Logels Ays:anun
SIS'vLL'Y eiz'es'y Zr6'e6L'y 899'88S'y £90'1L0'Y £9€'99E'Y 290'16€'Y 6us'0zL'y B55'GE6'E 6L9'L1L'E QNS 10} SAYD
6BV BT 982'96£'Z 26r'vLZT 62£'2887 28TIEVT 26N HETIZZ ¥SLGELT 258'862°2 888'60EZ SEXE] 950X BRGA JOLON
GZL'BIE'ES S IEL'SZGUS S SWWHE'YS S BIETEBES S GYZT'SHS0S  § L96'SS96K  § ¥OE'6ZEBY  § €2C0BE'CY S 689'9SYIY  § SOTLESTY S SpUNye) xe) Jo Leu
‘s Kpadoxd [euossad pue aynse Loy
SONURAIY
oz €Lz ziz Loz 010z 8002 8002 4002 9002 $00Z
e,

SRIA [9I814 UL I5ET
SPUNJ [FHUOWILIIACD ‘SPoURIEE PUnd U] seburyd

SHOSNYILSSEY POOMISOM JO UMOL

Yy BN ‘POOMISOM JO UMOL



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property by Classification and Tax Rates

Last Ten Years

Assessed and Actual Values and Tax Rates

Towl Commercal Total

R L Personsl Commercial  Commercial ot Owrect Town

Year Value Tax Rate Value Valve Property Valoo Tax Rate Total Value  Tax Rate Valse
2005 $2,777,182.391 $11.97 $257,451,131 $175,306,750 $36,935,683 $469,693,564 $20.97 14.5% $1327 $3,246,875.955
2006 (1) $3,135247507  $10.37 $270,425,345 $192,667.650 $50,618,745 $513.711,740 $18.85 14.1% $11.56 $3,649,059.247
2007 $3147514446  $10.73 $271,807,104 $190,849,800 $51,962,800 $514,619,704 $19.81 14.1% $1201 $3,662,134,150
2008 $3175,772814 $11.74 $272,818,535 $193,747.600 $51,955,500 $518,521,635 $2167 14.0% $13.13 $3,694,204 449
2009 (1) $3,197.768457  $12.01 $325,730,795 $164,387.500 $47,764 400 $537.882,695 $22.25 14.4% $13.48 $3,735,651,152
2010 $3,088616907  $13.07 $313,502,7¢4 $116,181.450 $48,381,800 $478,066,014 $23.98 134% $14.53 $3,566,682.921
2011 $3,014,069.261 $1383 $303,956,394 $111,888,000 $52,502,700 $468,347,094 $25.38 13.4% $15.38 $3,482,416,355
2012 (1) $3019444895 $14.48 $298,952,742 $116,563.050 $49,223,000 $464,738,792 $26.55 13.3% $16.09 $3,484,183.487
2013 $3,025447435  $14.89 $305,246,315 $110,035.850 $47,438,500 $462,720,665 $27.28 13.3% $16.53 $3,488,168,100
2014 $3024619.084  $1540 $301,008,803 $108,446.500 $47,416,300 $456871,603  S28.18 13.1% $17.08 $3,481,490,687

Yoasd Vase by Total Value by
Frcal Yoar Ended June 30, 2013 Fracal Yoar Ended June 30, 0W
»n o™ » o

"

)

L

— — s

Commercial Value as % of Total Value
15.0%
14.5%
14.0%

13.5%

13.0%

12.5%

12.0%
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 20M4

(1) Revaluation year.
Source: Department, Town of Westwood
All property In the Commonwealth of Massachusetts is assessed at 100% of fak cash value.

Note: Chapter 59, Saction 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws, known as "Proposition 2 1/2°, Imposes 2 separate limits on the
‘muuhxhwolme The primary kmitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed 2 1/2 percent of the full and fair cash value,
imitation s that the tax levy cannot exceed the maximum levy limit for the preceding year as determined by
msunc«nmman«mwmmzmmmwmmmuwwwmumm
for certain substantial valuation increases other than as part of a general revaluation. The secondary limit may be exceeded in any
year by a majority vote of the volers, however it cannot exceed the primary kmitation.
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Town of Westwood, Massachusetts

Direct and Over i Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2014
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
T f W 1t Outstanding (1) Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
NOMOIK COUNtY. ......oiiiiiiiiiii e $ 12,625,000 3.13% $ 394,784
TOWN GIr@CE ABDE. ...ttt e e e e a e e e e e e e e e s e e st 34,801,249
Total direct and overapping GEDE........ .o i e e e b e s aniaas $ 35,196,033
(1) This is the general bonded debt of both go and busi type net of original i and py
Source: Town of Westwood, Finance Department and related organizations.
Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with geographic boundaries of the Town. This
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
taxpayers of Town. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-
term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does
not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping
govemment.
Town of Wi d, Ma h 90 Compreh ive Annual Fi ial Report
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Town of Westwood, Massachusetts

Town of Westwood Massachesetts
Operating Incicaters by FenctionProgeam
Last Ten Years
Year
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How Does Westwood Compare with Other Communities?

In determining the list of communities with which to
compare Westwood, three factors were considered:
location, population, and per capita equalized valuation

(EQV).

Per Capita Equalized Valuation (EQV) - This factor
measures the relative "wealth" of a community by
dividing property valuations by population.

Per capita valuation is directly related to the amount of
revenue that a community can raise via the property tax.
It offers some comparison of a community’s

"ability to pay."

Location - Communitics within a 30 mile radius of
Westwood were considered.

Population - Towns with a population

significantly smaller lhfln‘\V’csl\w'Qod N Miles from 2010 2013 EQV 2013
probably do not have similar service Municipality | o ood Population | Per Capita Income
demands; one larger in population will Per Capita
have increased service
delivery demands. Canton 8 21,561 $203.433 $43.709
Concord 24 17,668 $314,836 $88.072
Holliston 14 13,547 $160.495 $42.892
Medfield 6 12,024 $202,634 $64.433
Source: MA Department of Revenue Sharon 9 17,612 $169,594 $51.095
Sudbury 21 17,659 $241,012 $79.004
Wayland 17 12,994 $253,042 $89.710
Weston 15 11,261 $514,825 $211,789
Westwood $263,032 $72.467
Year 2014
Residential | Commercial - ‘_:“ AL
Municipality Tax Tax Tax Levy = of
Rate Rate otal
Revenue
Canton 12.87 26.53 $62,465,129 67.80
Concord 14.45 14.45 $74.135,634 81.01
Holliston 19.88 19.88 $39.181,206 64.74
Medfield 16.12 16.12 $36.853,582 67.78
Sharon 20.55 20.55 $56,048,097 7223
Sudbury 18.03 24.94 $72,951,707 80.04
Wayland 18.33 18.33 $54,588,839 69.46
Weston 12.73 12.73 $67,990,017 75.63
Westwood $59.453,775
Year 2014 Year 2013 2014
2014 ’
Municipality Average Single State 7-1-13 Stabilization Ml‘:o'::;‘l -
- Family Tax Bill Hi-Lo Free Cash Fund R
N ating
Rank
Canton $5.805 80 $2,924,558 $4.610,294 Aal (2011)
Concord S$12,249 7 $9,664,489 $5,527.891 Aaa
Holliston $7.220 47 $1,358.776 $3,969,222 Aa2
Medfield $9.182 21 $2,670,660 $2,609.453 Aal
Sharon $8.914 24 $335,339 $100,378 Aa2
Sudbury S11.544 8 $2,380.250 $1,971,721 Aal (2011)
Wayland $10.974 10 $4,091.958 $1,539,120 Aaa
Weston $17.832 1 $3,182,126 S0 Aaa

Westwood

$9.601

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts
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Some Facts About Westwood
Form of Government Board of Selectmen, Executive Secretary, Open Town Meeting
Population Trends 2000 2010
14,117 14,618
Registered Voters (2013) Total Democrats Republi Unenrolled/Other
10,009 2,640 1,536 5,833
Westwood Schools

In April, 2005 the new high school and recreational sports fields were opened for students. The new
school features beautiful classroom facilities, a state of the art media center, and a new performing arts
facility. [

@

Westwood High School was named a 2012
National blue Ribbon High School by U. S.
Secretary of Education Arne Duncan on September
7, 2012. The school is one of just 38 high schools
nationwide to be identified as “Exemplary High
Performing,” a designation reserved for schools that
are among their state’s highest performing schools.
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Fiscal Year Median Home Sale Price
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Comnritted to Service

Visit Westwood's Web Site!
http://www.townhall.westwood.ma.us/

Important Links...

About Westwood

Address & Phone Directory
Community Resources Links
Employment Opportunities
Forms, Documents, Minutes
How Do I?

New Residents

News and Announcements
Photo Gallery

Traffic Updates

Upcoming Events

MA Deparsment of Revenue

MA Deparsment of Education

U, S, Census

Town Clerk - Town of Westwood

Board of Asscssors - Town of Westwood
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End of part 2 of 4
Please download the Appendices B, and C
For a complete archive of the 118t Annual Report.





